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Independent Auditor’'s Report
To the Shurcholders of United Finance PLC

Repert on the Audit of the Financinl Statements

Opinion

We hive audited the financial statements of United Finance PLC (the "Company™), which comprise the balance shect
#sat 31 December 2024 and the profit and boss sccount, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and notes 1o the financial statements, mchuding a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Company give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and its financial performance and cash tHlows for the year then ended in
wecordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS) a3 explained in note 2.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Awditing (ISAS). Our responsibilities under those
standards wre further described in the dwditors * Responsibilivies for the Awdic of the Financial Statements section of our
report, We are independent of the Company m asccordance with the Intemational Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Caode of Ethics jor Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), Bangladesh Scouritics and Exchange
Commission (BSEC) and Bangladesh Bank, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the TESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide & basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key andit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were uddressed in the context of our audit of the financial
stutements as & whole end in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separaté opinion on these matlers
For each matter below our description of how our audit addressed that matter is provided in that context

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report, including in relation 1o those matters

Accordingly, our audis included the performiance of procedures designed 10 respond 10 our assessment of the risks of
material misstatements of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed 10 nddress the matters below, provide the basis for our awdit opinion on 1he accompanying fnancial
statements,

I Description of key audit mattery Our response to Key sudit matters |

Measurement of provision for lease. loans and advances

With reference w0 Nowe 12.5 1o the Financial Statements, | We tested the design and operating effectiveness of key |
the process for calculating the provision for lease, loans | controls focusing on the following:

and asdvances portfolio assoclated with credit risk is

significant and complex. The Company calculates | o Credit appraisal, loan disbursement procedures,

provision for lease, loans and advinces by considering monitoring and provisioning process;
various factors such us rate of provision, loan casegory, | «  Jdentification of loss events, including carly
expiry date, cutstanding balance, interest  suspense wamning and default warning indicators,

amount, value of eligible collateral s per DFIM Circular | o Review of quartery Classification of Loans (CL).
No. 04 daed 26 July 2021 and @5 subsequent | Our substantive procedures In relation 1o the provision
amendments for Jease, loans and advances portfolio comprised the
following,
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Through DFIM Circular No. 10 dated 4 September 2022,

Bangladesh Bank issued guidelines for rescheduling and |

restructuring. and classification of Leases. Loans. wnd
Advances.

According to DFIM Circular Letter No. 33 dalcd 19
December 2021, NBFls must keep an exira 2% special
provision for the borrowers who have availed payment by
Deferral (PBD) facilities. The Company has kept & special
provision of BDT 4.08 million as of 31 December 2024 10
comply with the circular.

Moreover, classification of rescheduled and restructured
Lease, Loans and Advances was determined as per DFIM
Circular Letter No. 10 dated (4 Sepiember 2022, s per
direction of Bangladesh Bank after six monthly overdue
ot two quarterly overdue rescheduled and restructured
Jease, loans and advances will be classified as BL forthaose
lease, loans and advances that was rescheduled and
restructured aller the aforementioned circular

In  Bangladesh, non-performing loans have been
increasing day by day. NBFIs need to maintin provisions
for sdditional non-performing loans in line with the
Bangladesh Hank's guidelines. The Company identifies
impaired loan accounts and calculutes required provisions
manually. Furthermore, management has an incentive to
maintain lower provisions for loans and advances (o
overstate profit, Considering these factors, we have
considered measurement of provision for lease, loans and
ndvances as significant risk as well as a key audit matter.

Al the year-end of 2024, the Company reported 1o2al gross
lease, Joans and advances of BDT 1946336 million
(2023 BOT 20.376.74 million) whereas at the year end of
2024 the Compisny teported total provision for lease, loans
and advances of BDT 751,67 million (2023: BDT 67902
mndlion),

For confirming the classification of rescheduled lease,
loans and advances. we performed the following
procedures:

e We checked the no, of installment outstanding and
compliance with DFIM Circular No. 10 dated 4
September 2022;

Obsained Bangladesh Bank Inspection report n
FICL audit for the year ended 2024 and checked
either the directions or recommendations thereon,
have been addressed by the munagement or not,
Reviewed the adequacy of the general and specific
provisions and loan classification disclosures in the
financial statements in line with related Bangladesh
Bank guidelines;

Tested the inputs in computation of provision in
terms of lesting the accuracy of underlying
Information;

Assessed the methodologies an which the provision
amounts based (value of cligible securitics, mterest
suspense), recalculated the provisions for lease,
loans and advaaces;

and specific provisions;

Evaluated the approprinteness and presentation of
disclosures against relevant aecounting standards
and Bangladesh Bank gaidelines;

We assessed the appropriateness and presentation of
disclosure against relevant accounting standards and
Bangladesh Bank guidelines

See note no 12,5 1o the financial statements

_ Adequacy ol income tax provision

Al year end of 2024 the company reported p(onsmn for
income tex of BDT 2,313.70 million {(2023: BDT 2,165.65
mullion),

e Company has followed the legal procedures with
regards 1o disputes arising between United Finance PLC
wnd DCT. Appellate Tribunal and High Court. As a result,
in the unfavorable situation additional tax provision might
have been provided for against the respective order.

As this unsettled tax disputes and reversal of income tax
provision constitute material balance and significant
judgment is required to assess potential tax liability In
relation 1o peading tax assessments, we consider this as a
key audit matter.

-
!

We obuined un un_&_c‘m!undmg, evalusted the d'céign and

tested the operstional effectiveness of the Company's
key controls over the recognition and measurement of
income tax provision and the assumptions used m
estimating various allowable and disallowable items 1o
determine taxable income,

We also assessed the completeness and accuracy of the
data used to prepare year-wise tax position summary for
all pending tax assessments/appeals;

We have reviewed the assessment/sppeal orders by the
respective authorities;

Al NN ERENENSEEEEEERERN

Checked the adequacy of the Company's general




&Fa
w ECOVIS )

BANGLADESH

Descrﬂi)ﬁqn of key andit matters

A.QASEM & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sinca 185)

Our response to key audit matters

We have reviewed the assessment’ appeal orders o
determine whether the current tax provision s adequate
for the potential tax liability,

See note no 12.7 1o the financial statements

Recognition of interest income has a significant and wide
influence on financial statements.  Recognition  and
measurement of interest income bave involved complex
I'T environments.

We identify recognition of interest income from lease,
loans and advances as o key dudit matter because this is
one of the key performance indicators of the Company and
therefore there is an inherent risk of fraud and error and
overstatement in recognition of interest by minagement 1o
meet specific fangels or expectations.

Bangladesh Bank introduced the SMART rate through
DFIM Circular No. 07, dated 20 June 2023, However, the
SMART-based interest mte system has beea abolished
sccording to DFIM Circular No. 05, dated 06 October
2024, Fls are now free to determine the interest/profit
rates Lease, Loans, and Advances based on the demand
for funds end the supply of available funds

Recognition of interest income on lease, loans and advances

—

We tested
comrols over recoznition and measurement of mterest
on lease, loans and advances focusing on the following:

e Reviewing trinster of iterests fo the mcome
account in line with the Bangladesh Hank's
guidelineg,

o Reviewed the grounds for approval for the
ransfer of interest o the Income account,

We performed a test of operating cffectiveness on
automated control in place 1o measure and recognize
interest income.

We have also performed substantive procedure to check
whether interest income is recognized completely and
accurately in line with timeto-time movement of
SMART rate published by Bangludesh Bank and market
rate published by United Finance PLC.

However, du¢ 1o the current uncertainty of the overall
economic situation both in Bangladesh and Globally
there are inheremt risk that the judgment applicd by
Management in assessing recoverability of nferest
income from classified loans may be different than the
actual situation in fufure

See¢ note no 21 to the financial statements

)
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the design and operating cffectiveness of key

IT systems and controls
Our audit procedures have a focus on IT systems and
controls due 10 the pervasive nature and complexity of the
IT environment, the large volume of (ransactions
processed m numerous locations daily and the reliance on
automated and I'T dependent manuisl controls,

Our weas of mudit focus included  wser  access
management, developer actess and changes to the IT
environment. These are kev to ensuring I'T dependent and
application-based controls are operating effectively.

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of the
Company's IT access controls over the information
systems that are critical to financial reporting.

We tested 1T general controls (logical access, changes
management and aspects of IT operational controls),
This included testing that requests For access 1o systems
were appropristely reviewed and authorized,

We tested the Company's periodic review of sccess
rights and reviewed requests of changes to systems for
appropriate spproval and anthorization,

We considersd the coatrol environment relating to
various interfaces. configurations and other application
laver controls identified as key to our sudit,
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Description of key nudit matters | Our response to key audit matters
We performed the Tests of IT General Controls to

evaluate the Application Development and Database,
Hosting Platforms and segregation of incompatible
duties relevant to application and database change
management. =

Other information

Management is responsible for the other mformation, The other information comprises all of the information in the
- Annual Report other than the financial statements and our suditors’ report thereon, The Annual Report is expected w
be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial stalements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
wssurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this audit’s
repart, we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement of this other information, we are required to repoet that fact
We have nothing to report in this regard,

= Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and Internal

Controls

Management s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of the Company in
accordance with IFRSs as explained in note 2, and for sich internal control as management determines is necessary 10
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due o fraud or crror

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability t0 continue &s a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated 1o going concern and using the going concem basiy of
pecounting tnless management either intends to liquidate the Company OF 10 cease operations, of has no realistic
ultermitive but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversecing the Company s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement. whether due 10 fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes oar opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 1o influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these fimancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also!

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 10 fraad or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive (0 those risks, and oblsln audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriste to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a misterial misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrcpresentations, or the override of internal contrel.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design sudit procedures that are
nppropeiate in the circumstances.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's usc of the going concern basis of acoounting and, based on the
mudit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 1o eventy or conditions that muy Cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that u material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inndequate, 1o modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obiained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company 10 coase 10 CONtinue as i going concem,

Evaluate the overall presensation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, und
whether the financial statetents represent the underfying transactions and events in @ manner that achicves fair
presentation

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planaed scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We elso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought 1o bear on our mdependence, and where applicable, refated safeguards

From the matters communicated with those charzed with govemance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit marters. We
describe these matters in our avditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter o
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our repon because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expecied 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companics Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020, The Finance Company Act,
2023 and the rules and regulations issued by Bangladesh Bank, we also repoert that:

i we have obtamed all the information and explanations which 1o the best of our knowledge and beliel’ were
necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof]

i, inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appearsd
from our examination of those books:

iil. the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the annexed notes dealt with by the report are m
pgreement with the books of account and retumns;

iv.  the expenditures incurred were for the purpose of the Company's business for the year;

v.  the financial statements of the Company have been drawn up in conformity with The Finance Company Act, 2023
and it accordance with the accounting rules and regulations which were issued by Bangladesh Bank to the extent

applicable to the Company;

vi  adequate provisions have been made for lease, loans & advances. investment and other assets which are, in our
opinion, doubtful of recovery and Bangladesh Bank's instructions in this regard have been followed properly:

vil. the financial statements of the Company conform to the prescribed standards set in the accounting regulations
which were issued by Bangladesh Bank after consultation with the professional accounting bodies of Bangladest.

BB E SRS D
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the records and statements which were submitted by the brunches have been properly maintained and recorded in
the financial statements.

statements sent to Bangladesh Bank have been checked on sample basis and no inaccuracy hiss comie 1o our
attention;

taxes and other dutics were collected to be and deposited in the Government treasury by the Company @ per
Government instructions found satisfactory based on test checking,

nothing has come 1o our attention that the Company bas adopted any unethical means i.c. ‘window dressing’ to
inflate the profit and mismatch between the maturity of assets and Habilities;

proper measures have been taken to climinate the irregularities mentioned in the inspection report of Bangludesh
Bank and the instructions which were issued by Bangladesh Bank and other regulatory authorities have been
complied properly as disclosed to us by manngement;

based on our work as mentioned above under the auditor’s responsibility section, the intemal control and the
compliance of the Company is satisfactory, and effective measures have been tuken to prevent possible materal
fraud, forgery and internal policies are being followed approprintely;

the Company has complied with relevant laws pertaining 1o capital, reserve and net worth, cash and Hquid sssets
and procedure for sanctioning and disbursing loans. leases found satisfactory:

we have reviewed over $0% of the risk weighted assets of the Company and we have spent around 5,000 person
hours for the audit of the books and accounts of the Company,

the Company has complied with relevant instructions which were issued by Bangladesh Bank relevant to
classification, provisioning and caleulation of interest suspense,

all ather issues which in our epinion are important for the stakeholders of the Company have been adequately
disclosed in the audit report financial,

Ziaur Rahman Zia, FCA
PFartner
Enrolment Number: 1259

pve: 2504301258A5118592

Dheka, Bangladesh
Dated; 28 April 2025
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Chartered Accountants

FRC Enlistnwent No: CAFA001-129
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PROPERTY AND ASSETS

Cash

i hand

UNITED FINANCE PLC,

as A

Balance with Bangladesh Bans and as agent bank(s)

Balance Sheet

t 31 December 2024

(™

Balance with banks and other financial Institutions 4

in Eanglaacsh
Cutsice Bangladesh

Money at call and short notice

Investments
Govwetrirnent

Cthers

Lease, loans and advances
Legse redevabie

Loavs, cash credhits, overdrafts, esc

Fixed assets including land, bullding, furniture and fixtures u

Other assets

Non - financial institutional assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND CAFITAL

Liabilities

Batrawing from banks, other financial institutions and agents 10

Deposits and other accounts
Curront Sepatily anc Sther accounts oic
8is payable

Savings benk deposins

erm QQpOsas

finacar cortfiontes of cdepout

Cther deposits
Other llabilities
Total liabilities

Capital /shareholders' equity

Fad-ul capitet

Share preamum

Statutory reserve

Canerd reserve

Relained garmengs

Total shareholders” aquity

Total liabilities and sharsholders' equity

Net asset value per share (NAY)
Restatermant of NAV:

et asset
Numbaer of ousstanding sharnes (curent year's)

NAN por sheare

13
14
15
16
17

Amount in 8017
2024 1033

%39, %00
-c* 250,20 s - v
208,989,70 249,457 539

3,623,608,376

3,871,004, 172 ]

3,623, 698,376 3.873,994,182

F22,943,075
1,206 556,395} 1. 581 556 380

L—J——J._—.—-Lv o
1,929,101,463 1, 541 556, 380

o, "J- 197,027 §
12,755 160 954 !l\qn‘.,jAn.J

9,463.357.980 20.376,737,875
129,224 986 W4 735 163
2,4901,191,892 3, 392,039.615

28,015 566,405 28 818,520963

§,058.935,799 7,181,251 67C

11,367, 654,015 13,657 887 300

248,195,357
14 246 081, 720
i, 149,350, 44C

25.577,283,837 _

839.967.1 3?
12,207,832, 052
4 410,606 682
24,677.374, 532

1,671,156,190 1 1,871,1
3,750,000 3
1,065,900,000 1,024.0
190,000,000 130,00
| FULIR Y TRA T 152, 25941, S84
__3.338.193,872 3.241,237.126
28,015 565405 28818.520.963
17.84 17,32

3,338.193.872 3,241,237,136
187,114,614 167,114,654
17.84 . 17. 32




UNITED FINANCE PLC,
Balance Sheet

25 a7 31 December 202

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

- Amaunt in BOT

Motes 2024 2023

Contingent labilities 19
ACCEpRINCes and endorsements { ]
L s of guaraniee
Irrevacatie letvers of credit
B or Colection
Other contingent sabilite J
Other commitments

COUMEnary tredits and o term trace-relataed ransact ons
Farward assets purchased and forward doposits piacec -
Undtswn note Issuance and revalvir g underweting faciities
Ungirawn farmal standby raotities it ines and other Commtments §
Total Off-Balance Sheot items Including contingent Uabilities -

The anvexad Notas 1 1o 2 J form an intggrdd part of these financial statements

g e o : >

Profesyor Or, Mahfuzul HoQue Kayes Khalil Khan

Independant Direczor Diractar

A, Qasem & Co.
Chanered Accountants
FRC Evdigtmment No: CAF-001+129

Docernlolenl,

Dhoka, Banglaces: Zlaur Rabman Zia, FCA
Dated: 28 Aornil 2025 Fartner

Enrolment Number: 1253

2506301259A5118592

o
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UNITED FINANCE PLC.
Frofit and Loss Account
for the vear ended 31 Decamber 2024

Amount in BDT

Notes 2024 2023

OPERATING INCOME - T T Rt
interest Income 2 2,650,472, 660 2,153,534,957
interast palo on Jeposits, barrawings, ett 2 (1,598 654 243)|| (1.355.422 093
Net interest income 1,051,778,617 800,112,865
InuasTment Income 23 180,889 177 112,795 401
Commission, exchange and brokerage .
Other operating income 24 116,441,526 154 386,785
Total operating Income (A) 1,349,109,320 1,067,295,455
OPERAYING EXPENSES
Salaries and allewances 5 586,265,376 547,561,360 |
Rent, taxes, INSurance. slectricity etc 26 17,974,185 18 671,011
Legal expenses 27 14,814,770 15,886,550
Postage, stamp, telscommuricotion etc 28 16,916,397 17,427,221
Stationery, grinting, advertisemants exc 29 4,942,464 1,924,263
Managing Director's salary and benefils 30 §,200,000 1,250,000
Cyrectors” fees 31 348,334 566,333
Auditors” lees 32 862,500 805,000
Charges on loan osses
Depreciation and repalr of assets 33 100,724,001 58,672,758
Other expenses 34 41,577,651 38,569,320
Total operating expenses (B) 803,625,685 751,937,718
Profit before provision C=(A-8) 545,483,634 315,357,736
Pravision for lease, loans and advances 3S 172,085,342 88, 777,406 ‘
Provision for diminutian in vaiue of investments
Other provision 25,000,000
Total provision (D) 197,085,342 88,777,400
Operating profit before taxes E~(C-D) 348,398,292 226,500,220
PROVISION FOR TAXATION
Currert Tax 36 148,049,819 90,131,515 |
Defarred Tax 36 [B,877.041) (6,654,2906) |
Total provision for taxation (F) 139,172,778 83 476,609
Not profit after taxation (E-F) 209,225,514 143,103,721
Appropriations
Stantory reserve 15 41,850.000 29,000,000
Seneral resorve 16
Divdends etc, il

41 850.000 29,000,000

Retained surplus

Earnings per share (EPS5)

37

—167%,375,514 _ 114,103,721

1.12

0.76

T™he annesed nedes ! 1o 5! form an integreal pact of thesa financial statemanty

Professor Dr. Mahfuzul Hogque Kayes Khalil Khan
independeont Director Durector

Managing Directer

A. Qasem & Co.
Charterad Accountpnts
FAC Enlistment No: CAF-001-129

Dhaxg, Bangadesh Ziaur Rahman Zia, FCA ‘-\
Dated: 28 April 2025 Partner
Ercolment Number: 1259

2504301259A51185972




UNITED FINANCE PLC.
Cash Flow Statement

for the year anded 31 Cecember 2024
Amount in BDT
Notes 2024 2023
A) Cash fiows from operating activities

Irterest receipts ! 2,493,192,221 1‘ 2,062 040,355 |
Irtarast paymants (1,608,655, ‘-'30 1,331,326,793)
Dividend receipts 135,449 219 B4 B84 SIB
Amount realised from written off chhants 7.8 )4 32,034,750 40,355,828
Faymenis o empayecs (563,421,944 46,851 350
Payments to suppliess (826,836,242) 267,187,753
Incoms taxes pald a4 (128,147 158) 34,472,54
Receipts frum other cpe=ating activities 38 140,767,317 106,684,950
Payments for other cperating activites 39 (61,450, 134)) ‘64,602,925

8)

<l

nmo

The annexed notes 21 to §

uoham ad Rahqul 1stam Professor Dr, Mahfuzul Hoque

Cash generated from operating activities before changes
in oparating assets and liabilities

Increase/{decrease) in operating assets and llabilities
Lease, loans and advances

Onher assets

Right-of-use assets

Term and other deposits

Accrued expenses and payables

Snort term loen

Interest susPOnse

Provision for gratuity

COther Liatulities

Net cash Nows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
investment In shares

Investmant in Gove. Securities

Redemption of Goyt. Securities
Redesmnption/sale of shares

Sodemptian af commerciat Bond

Purcnacse of fixed nssety

Procoeds from sele of fixed assels

Net cash flaws from Investing activities

Cash flows from Mnancing activities

Receipts of lang term lcan

Ropayments of long term loan

Dividend paid

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivaients (A+ B + C)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash ang cash sguivaents
Cash and cash cgulvalents At beginaing of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (D+E+F)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
Cash in hand

falance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank(s)
Balance wih banks and other financial institutions
Maney at call and shoet notice

Net operating cash flows per share

o

Mankging Director Independent Director

Dhaka, Bangladesh
Dated: 28 April 2025

12,891,897

(2,635.677)

1,132,4)5,951
18,354,026
(1,632,323)
(2,038,240, 668)

o
-
o W
<
N
']
»

-
.
.
(1 =
“

{381,193, 320

(61,495,820) 140,647,395
1.443,009,376 290,167,472
70,453.548 60,5114 ,954
6,270,872 2,993,983 |
L P :ﬁjg‘iﬁm L7 =I a4 _,L-,'ﬁ_i___
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972,375,400
306,420,050

30,000,000
(27,450,467,
3,016,764 )

502,665 |
487,580

Q00,01

(411,098,757)

3,175,116,542 4,228,182,926

{3,740,523,78%) {2,054,688,027)
7113 067,481) 55 385 544) |

(678,472,729)

1290,763,640)

4123 451,722

{
1,176,109,351

96,035,164

3,632,688,082

1,535,500
207,450,205
1623.696,376

1,539,500
247,918,035
1,873,994,1487

3832688082  __ 4,123,451,733_
2. —

1 fovrm 3n integra) part of these finanoial statements

-

Kayes Xhalil Khan
Director

Najmul Ha
Chairman
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1.1

1.2
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—

United Finance PLC,
Notes to the financial statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

General Information

Domicile and legal farm

The Company is dorniciled in Bangladesh. 1t was grantad license under the Financial Institutions Act
1993, The Company was incorporated on 27 April 1989 under the Compenies Act, 1913 (amended in
1994). 115 requistration number is C-18454{338)/89. The shares of the Company are quoted an the
Ohaka Stack Exchange Limited since 1934 and are transacted in dematenalized form through Central
Depository Bangladesh Limitod s=nca 14 October 2004, The Company has its regstered office at
Cameliia Mouse, 22 Kazl Narrul Isiam Avenge, Dhaka.

Bangladesh Bank, through its DFIM Circular Letter No. 41 dated Decomber 15, 2024, has notified
that the name of the finsnce company Uniteg Finance Limited' has been changed to ‘United Finance
PLC with immediate affect

Nature of operations ant pnncipal activities

The Company provides financial seryes which includes lease finance far acquiring assers for
ndustnal and commercial use, term loans for meeting leng torm funding requirement, short-term
Working copital saiutions and home 153ns to cater the needs of s diverse client base, The Company
offers vanous deposit investment oppdrtunities of predefingd tenure ranging frem 1 months o 1]
y2ars 1 months

Summary of significant accounting policies and basis of preparation of the finandal
statements

Statement of compliance

The Fnancial Reporting Act 2015 (FRA) was enacted in 201S and subsecuently the Financal
Reporting Counal (FRC) has been formed but yet to issue financal reporting standarcs for publc
Interest entities such as non-banking finencial institutions. Hence [nternational Financial feporting
Standards (1FRSs) as adopted by the Institute of Chartersd Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) are
still applicable,

Accordngly, the financial statements of the Campany Is continued to be prepared In accordance with
International Financial Reperting Standards (IFRSsS) and the reguirements of tie Firance Company
Act, 2023 (replacing Financial Institutiors Act, 1993), the rules and reguiations Issued by Bangladesh
Bank (BB), the Companies Act, 1994, In caze any requirement of the Finarce Company Act, 2023,
regulavans & circulers issuec by Bangladesh Bank and FRA's requirement differ with those of [FRSs
and FRC's requirements, the regurements of the Faance Company Act, 2023, and provisions ang
crevlars issued by Bangladesh Bank shall prevail

Uisciosure of deviation from a few requiroments of IAS/IFRS due to mandatory compliance witn
Eangladesh Bank's reguirements

Bangindesh Bank serves as tho primary regulatory authonty for Non-Banking Finanoal Institutions
(NBFIs) in Bangadesh, Certain requlaticns set by Bangladesh Bank differ from the réquirements of
[ASS/IFRSS. As @ result, the Company has departed from these conflicting 1ASS/IFRSs requirements
to comply with Bangladesh Bank’s reguiations. The detalis of these cevietions, slong with thair
financial Impact {where applicatle), are disclosed below.




1) Investment in shares and secusitivs

[FRS: As per roguirements of 1FRS 9: elsccification end measurermant of investment in shares and
securities will depend on baw these ase managed (the entity's business model) ang their zontractual
cash flow characteristics, Based on these fastors it would generally fall either unger “at fair value
through profit and loss account” or under "at fair value threugh other comprehensive incoma” where
any change in the feir value (a5 measured In accordance with IERS 13) ot the year-end s taken 1o
profis and loss accaunt or ceher comprehensive Income respectively,

Bangladesh Bank; As per FID Circular o, 08 dated 03 August 2002 investments in quotod shares ard
unquated shares ase revalued at the yeor end ot msrket price and as per book value of last audited
balance sheet respactively. Pravision should be made for any loss arising from diminubion in value of
nvestmaent] otherwise Investments ara recognised at cost.

Financial or presentation affect of the departure: Financal Statements for 2024 and corresparting
year 1023 have been prepared as per guideline {(FID Gircular No. 08 dated 03 August 2002) of
Bangladesh Bank. During this year, tere i3 no impact in the financial statements due to this
departure ac markat price of share are more than cost price.

) Frovision for icase, loens and advances

IFRS: As pef IFRS § an antity shall recognise an impairment allowance on bans and advances hased
On expectod credit losses, AU €a<h reporting date, an entity shall measure the impairment allowance
for loans and advances ot an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit Sosses if the credit #isk on
these loans and advances has increased significantly since inibal recognition whetlier assessed on an
mdividual or cofective bagis considering all reasonasie information, iIncluding that which s forward
looking, For those loans and advances for wheh the credit risk has not increased significantly since
INltal recognition, &t each reporung date, an enrtity shall measure the mpairment allowance at an
imaunt equa! to 12 months expected credit losses,

Bangladesh Bank: Az per DFIM Circular o, D4 dated 26 July 2021, DFIM Circular No. 10 dated 0)
October 2021, OFIM Circular No, 33 dated 19 Decamber 2021, DFIM letter No, DFIM{P)21052/27/2022-
25 dated 02 Jarwary 2022, DFIM Circular No, 10 dated 04 September 2022 and DFIM Clrculae lotter
No. 37 dated 04 December 2024 3 general provision at 1% to 5% for Nan-SME and 0 25% for SME
under different categories of unclassined 10ans (good/standard loans) has to Y& maintained regardioss
of ohjective wvidence of impairment. Also provision for sub-standard loans, doubtfyl loans and bad
losses has to be provided at 20%, S0% and 100% for Non-SME on the other hand 5%, 20% and
100% for SME respectively for fease bans and advances depending an the duration of overdue,

Financial ar presentation effect of the departure: Financial Statements for 2024 and corresponding
year 2023 have boen prepered as per guidelng [DFIM Circular No. 04 dated 26 July 2021, DFIM
Crcular No. 10 dated D3 October 2021, DFIM Circular No. 33 dated 19 December 2021, DFIM |etter
Ka. DFIM(P)1052/27/2022-35 dated 02 Januacy 2022, DFIM Circular No. 10 dated 04 September 2022
and DFIM Circular letter No, 37 datod 04 Decamber 2024) of Bangladesh Bank. &n amaunt of BDYT
172.08 mdllion has heen charged as incremental provision for lease, loans and advances for 2024, A<
at 31 Decembor 2024 accumy@ted provision for lease, loans and advances stand at BDT 75376
mellion

1} Recagnition of interest in suspense

IFRS: Loans and advances to customers are genaraily classified at armortised cost as per [FRS 9 ana
Interest income Is recognised by using the effective Intarsst rata mathod o the gross casrying amount
over the term of the loan. Once 3 Joan subsequently becomes credit-impaired, the entity shall apply
the effective interest rate 1o the amoctised cost of these Kanrs and advances.

Bengladesh Bank: As per DFIM Circular No, 04 dated 26 July 3621, once & loan reaches SMA ststus,
Interest on such lbans are not allowed to be recognised as income, rather the corresponding amount
needs to be credited to an interest suspense account, which is presented as lisbilty in the balarce

sheel,




Financial or presentation effect of the cepanure: Finansal Stataments for 2024 and corresponding
year 2023 have boen prepared as per guideine (As per DFIM Circular No. 04 datea 26 July 2021) of
Banglacesh Bank. At the yvear end, irterest suspense account has increased to BDT 312,26 millon
from BOT 241 79 mulllon resulting incresse of BDT 70.45 millon of interast suspense, This amount
has beon shown under other llabdives in note 12.2

Iv) Presentation and disclosure of Financial Statements and Firancial Instruments

IFRS: Other comprehensive income (OCT) is a component of financial statements or the slements of
OCI are to be included in 2 sngle cther camprehensive income statement, IAS 32 and [FRS 7 require
specilic presentation and discliosure relating 1o all Anancal Instruments

Bangiadesh Bank: Bangladesn Eank has esued templates for inancial statements vice DFIM Circalar
No. 11, doted 23 Decenmber 2009 wihich will stectly be followed by all NBFLs, The templates of
financial statements issues by Bangladesh Bank neither include other comprehensive income {(OC])
nor are the elements of other comprehensive income &lowed to intiede In 2 singe omrarehgnsive
Income statement, As per Bangladesh Bank guidalines, financial instruments are catogansed,
recognised ang measured differentty from those prescribed in LAS 39, As such some desciosure and
presentation requirerments of IFRS 7 and [AS 32 have not been made In the sccounts,

Funancial or presentstion effect of the degarture: Fiancial Statements for 2024 and corrasponding
year 2023 have baen praparid as per guigeling (DFIM Circular No. 11 dated 23 Decamber 2003) of
Bangladesh Sank.

v) Cash flow statement

1AS: As par 1AS 7: Statement of cash flows, tho cash flow statement can be prepared using either
the direct methad or the ndirect method, The presentation | selected 10 present these cash MNows i
@ manner that |15 most appropriate for the business ar Industry, The method selected s applied
consistently

Bangtodesh Bank: As per DFIM Cirgular No, 13 doted 23 Qecember 2009, cash flaw & the
combinatian of diract and indirect methods

Financial or presantation effect of the departure: Financial Statements for 2024 and corresponding
year 2023 haye been prepared as per guidelineg (DFIM Clrcular No. 11 dated 23 December 2(09) of
Bangiadesh Bank,

vi) Cash ang Cash equivalent

IAS: As per JAS 7: Statement of cash flows. cash equivalents are short term, highly higue
Investments that are readily convertibie to Xnown amounts of cash and oy Indude those
Investments winch are for 8 short tenure kel J months or less perlod, In Sght of the abave, belance
with Banglagesh Bank and fixed tarm deposits should be troatad as investmaent assat rather than

cash equivalent as it is ligusd asset and not avallable for use in day to day operatons.

Bangladesh Bank: Bangladesh Bank has ssued templates for financial statements vide DFIM Cirrular
No. 11 dated 23 Decembder 2009 which will strictly be followed by all NBFls, The templatey af
firancial statements proveied dotall presentation for statement of cash flows.

Financial oo presentation effect of the degarture: Financial Statements for 2024 and comresponding
year 2023 have baon prapared as per guldeline issued through DFIM Clircular No. 11 dated 23
December 2009 of Pangladesh Bank,

vii} Current/Non-currént Gstinction

IAS: As por Para 60 of IAS 1! Presentation of Financial Statements, “An entity shall presant currant
and non-current assels and current and non-current Labilties as separate classtfication o its
statement of financiad positian™
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Bangladesk Bank! As ger DFIM Circular No. 11, dated 23 December 2009, Bangadesh Bank has
issued ternplates for Dinanglal statements whsch are appicadie to all NBFis, In these tempiates themn
% 1o current and non-Turment segrmentation of assets ang lisbelities

Financial or presentation effect of the departure: Financial Statemants far 2024 and correspanditg
year 2023 hove boen prepared as per guideline (DFIM Circular No, 11 dated 23 December 2009) of
Banglagesn Bank. Moregver, the liquidity statement shows the aging profile of all financial assets ard
llablizies from where current)/non-current portion of assets and llabilies can be oblaineg.,

viii} Intangible Ascets

LAS: As per 1AS || Prezsentation of Financal Statements, para 54: the statemant of Hinandal posiiun
shall include separate Ling item far mtongible assets,

RBangladesh Bank As per DEIM Curcuar No, 11, dated 23 December 2009, there 15 no ootion for
separate line item for stangible asset in the balanco sheat. We present intangie assel o the
Dalance sheet s part of fixed assets and provide details n annexure-A a5 separate line item

Financal or presentation effect of the doparture: Financial Statements for 2024 and correspording
year 2023 have been prepared as per guideins (DFIM Croular No. 11, dated 23 December 2009) of
Bangladesh Bank. There & no finanaal impact for this departure in the financial statements.

ix) Off balance sheet items

IFRS ard [AS: There 5 no concept of off-balance sheet items in any IFRS; hence there = 0
reguirement for desclosure of of-talente sheot items on the face of L batance sheet,

Bangladesh Bank: As per DFIM Circular No. 11, duted 23 December 2006, off-bolance sheet itoms
(e.g, letter of credit, letter of guarantee efc.) must be disciosed separately o6 the Fare of the halancs
shaet,

Financip! ar presentation effect of the departure: Finanoal Statements for 2024 and corresponding
year 2023 have bean prepared os per gudeline (DFIM Circular No. 11 dated 23 Decomber 2005) of
Bangladesh Bank, There 15 no financial impact in the financisl statements for this desarture

x ) Compiete <et of Financial Statements

IAS: AG per 1AS L: Presentation of Financial Statements, complete set of fnancidl staternsty
COMprises

1) b statement of finoncal postion as at the end of the period]

1) & statement of prafit or (055 and other comprehiensive income for the penod !

) a statement af changes in equity for the penod;

iv] & statement of cash flows for the periad;

v) notes, camprising significant accounting policies and other explanatary information;

vi] comparative information n respect of the preceding period; and

vil) & statamant of finarciad posibion at the beginning of preceding penod for recrospective restatemon
Bangladesh Bank: As pear DFIM Circuler No, 11 dated 23 December 2009, complete set of inancia
statemants includes

1) Ealance sheet,

i} profit and lpss account;

i) statement of changes In equity;

fv) statement of cash Nows;

v) statoment of ligudity, ang

vi) nates, comprising significant accounting palices and other explanatory information

15
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Financial or presantatan gffect of the degarture: Financial Statements for 2024 and carmesponding
year 2023 haye boen prepared as par guidefing (OFIM Circular No, 11 dated 23 December 2005) of
Bangladesh Bank. There i1 no financial impact in the financial statements for this depanture

¥1) Deforred Tax

IAS! Ay per JAS 12 (Intome Taxes), & deferred tax asset shal be recogrized for &l deductible
wmparary differences, provided it = probable that sufficent taxable profit will be avallabio 1o wlilizg
thase gifferences

Bangladesh Bank: As per DFIM Circular No. 7, dated 31 July 2011, the recognition of deferrad tas
Assets % Not permitted for any degwctibie temparary differences reiated to provsions for leases
oans, and advances

Financial or presentation effect of the departure: Financial Stateaments for 2024 and comresponding
year 2023 have been propared 2s per quideline (DFIM Circular No. 7 dated 33 July 2011) of
Bangladesh Bank

%) Uwsclosure of presentation of prafit

IAS. There 15 no reguirement to show apprognation of prefit In the face of statement of
comprehensive Income

Bangiatesh BSank: As per DFIM cirouler o, 11, deted 23 Oecember 2009, an approgratson of proit
should be discosed In the foce of profit and loss account.

Financial or presantation offect of the departure: Financal Statements for 2024 and correspondl
year 2023 have been prepared as per guideine (DFIM Circuiar No. 11, dated 23 Decamber JOOS) of
Bangladesh Bank. There 15 no fineancal impact for this departure in the financial statements

Basis of preparation of the linancial statements

The Nhnancial statements of the Company have been prépared on 28 going concem basis following
accrual basis of accounting gxcept for cash fiow statement ang iInvestment In marketable securities
which e stated at market value in eccordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standores
(IFRS) issued by Internatanal Accounting Standarte Board (TASB) and as adopted in Bangladesh by
the [nstitute of Chartered Accountants of Banglagdesh, except the circumstances where local
regulstions differ, and the Companies Act, 1994, the Finance Company Act, 2023, Securities anc
Exthange Rules, 1987 & the (Listing) Regulstions, 2015 of Dhaka Steck Exchanges and othes
opplcable laws and regulations,

Directors’ responsibiity statement

The Boasd of Directors' takes the responsdiiny for the preparation and presentation of these financal
statomenss

Use of estimates

Fhe preparstion of the financial statements reguires the manggement (o make estumates &
os=umptions thot affect the reported amount of assets, Rabilities, Income and expanses. it ako
requires gisclosure of contingent assets and Habllities as at the date of the firancial statemeats. The
estimate and assumptions are based on previous experience and other factors that sre balieves 1o ve
ressonable under the crcumstances. Actual résults may differ from these astimates

The estimates and underlying pssumptions are réviewed on 3N oNgoing basis andg the revisions o
SLCoUNtYg estimates are recognsed in the panod in which the estimates are ravised
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Information about signficant areas of estimation, uncertainty angd critical judgments In applying
accounting polcies having the most significent effect in the year ended 31 December 2024 s
InCuded i the fTabowng notes:

1) ot 9.2 Deferred tax assets

1) Note 12,1 Provisaon for oratuity

W) Note 12.5 Provision for lease, loans, advances, other assets and off bafance sheet items
Iv) Note 12.7 & Naote 36 Provision for income tax

v) Note 33 Depreciation

Reporting currency and level of exactituce

The figures in the financial statements have been stated in Bangladeshi Taka (BOT/Taka/Tk.) whicr
Is the functional currency of the Company and have been rounded off to the nearest integer

Compearative information

Prior year figures and accaunt titles have heen rearranged to conform curment year's présentation

accardance with the Banglacesn Bank DFIM Cirtular No. 11 dateg 23 December 2005

Authorngation for issue of the finanoal statements

I'he Baprg of Directors of the Comgpany has authorised these linancial statements for issue on 24
Aprit 2025,

Matenality of financial statements

Each materip! item, a5 considered by managemant significant, has been presented segarately in the
finanoal statements wherever applicable.

Cash llow statemant

Cash flow staterment has been prepgorod a5 per guidelines of DFIM Circuler No, 11 datey 23
December 200% of Bangladesh Bank,

Statement of changas in eqguity
Stotement of changes in eguity s prepared In accordance with [AS 1: Presentation of Finonoa

Statements and Bangladesh Bank DFIM Circufar No 11 dated 23 December 2009 which reflacts the
ncrease and decrease in net assets or wealth

Liquidity statement {asset and liability maturity analysis)

Liquidity statement is prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Bank DFIM Circular No. 11 dateg 23
December 2002 on residual maturity tesm of assets and habilities as on the reporting date bhased on
the following assumptions

) Balance with other 8anks and financaal instiutions, monay at call ang short notice, etc. are on tne
Dasis of their maturity term,

i) Investments are on the bass of their respective matunty;

1) Lease, loans and Sdyances are on the basis of their repayment schedule;

v) Fixed assets are on the pasis of their remaining life;

v) Othar aseats are on the kasis of thair realisation/amartisation; |

vi) Borrowing from other benks, financié! institulions and agents, ¢iC, are as per thesr matunty/
repayment terms,;

vit) Deposits and cther acoounts are an the besis of thesr matunty @rm and past trend of
withdrawal,

vitl) Provisions and gther liabelities are on the basis of their payment/adjustmens schedule




o 5 " " A S YT T EEEEEEEEEETW

21314

Significant accounting policies

The sccounting policies set cut below have been applied consistently (otherwese &4 staled) 1o &
periags presented in these finandal statements.,

Cash and cash equivalems

Cash and cash equivaiants consist of cash in hand, bank bafances and deposis held at call with
banks and financial institubans and short term liquid investments that are readily convertibiz o
KNown amount of Cash which dare uniikely to De affected by any msignificant rsk of change in vl

ficcounting for loases

Following IFRS 16: Leases, accounting for lease transactions have been recordad under finance pase
method sence oll the nisks and rewords incwdente! Lo ownership are substantially transferred 1o the
lassen as por agroament. Accardingly the aggragate lease racelvables sxcluding un-guarantoed
residusl value throyghout the prnmary lease term are recorded as gross lease recewables while the
excess of net leass receivabies over the total Acquisition ©ost constitutes the unearned lease income

I'he unearned lease ncome 15 amortised to rovenue over the primary lease term ywliding a constant
rate af return over the oenod. Inibal direct costs, if any, are charged in the year in which such Costs

Accounting for loans

Roceivables aga:nst term lgans including short term foan and home |oan comprises principal amounts
due from customers egainst these loans. Acornyed Interast thereon are accounted for on accroal basis
and ahown separately.

Accounting for investment

[nvestment comprises of investment in eguity, corporste bond and govermnmment securnbes.

Investment in marketalie/non markatable shares

Investment In marketadie ordinary shares has besn shown at cost. Investment in non-marketable
shares has been valued at cost. Full provision for dimanution in value of shares as on clesing of the
year 15 made in the financial statements 28 reguired by Bangladesn Bank DFIM circular No. 02 dated
Januvary 31, 2012 in case of any unrealised gain, no such gain 5 recognised In onder to comply with
M0 crcular No. 8 dated 3 August 2002 of Bangladesh Bank,

Investment »m Governmernt secunbies

Following IFRS 9: Fnancal [nstruments, investmants In government secuntios are classifies as
financial assets and gre measured at amortised cost, fair value through cther comprehensive Ncume
ar fair velue through profit and loss. For the valuation of investments in government securities, th
amortised cost method K appled when the fodlowing critesias are met

(&) the entity s business model for managing the firancial assets; and
(b) the contractual cash flow characieristics of the hnancisl assets

Accounting far leases for office rent (IFRS-16)

United Finance, as a leasee, recognises a nght-of-use (ROU) asset represonting Its right to use of the
underlying leased assets and corresponding lease lability representing Its obligation to make leass
paymonts for office renmt agreements with effoct from 01 Januvary 2019, The ROU ssset and beats
hability are recognised in the financial statements considering the Incremertal borrawing rate

The ROU asset is depreciated using the straight fine method from the beginning to the end ol useful
ifg of the ROU assot or end af the lease term (note-8),

1%
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The icase babikty IS initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are adjustec
far monthly payments. Lease payments are recorded to prafit and loss account as depreciation and
finance charges (rote-12, 22 & 313)

I'he ROU asset and lease liabilty will be re-meéasured when there is 2 change in future lesse
payments arising from a change in borrowing rate and corrasponding adjustments will be recosded

Fixed assers and deprecation

Recognitan

The cast of an tem of ficed assets 5 recognised as an asset if, ang only if i1 is probable that future
economic benefits ssxacated with the tem will flow to the Company, and the cost of the item can be
measured relially, The cost comprises purchase price and any directly attnbutable cast of banging
the assetl to the ncation andd conditon 1o Its Intended use Incusive of guties ang non-refungabie

taxes,

Subseguent costs of enhancement of existing assels are recognised as a separate aseet, anly when |
Is probable thet future economic benefits associated with the item wit flow to the Company and the
COSt Of SuCh items can be measur=d relably. All other expenditures are charged to the profe and loss
account dunng the fMinancial period in whech they ace incurred.

LDeprecliation
Deprecation s charged based on straight line method throughout the estimated span of usedul life
Far addition to fMixed assets, depreciation s charged for the month in which it becomes avalaule o
use. No doprecation is charged for the morth ¢f dispesal. The rates of deprecation Used are o
follnwe

Item Ogpreciation rate 4
[Furaityre & Fixture 12.50% |
(0ffce EGguipment 15.00%

iclc.'.xnr.al Equipmens 20.00%

IMotor Vemcle 20,00%

!\Olfnc Space 2.50%

Is0nware 20,00% - 33.33%

Right-of-use assets Different rates are charged an assets based on respective sgreement tenurd
Devecogribipn

An item of fixed assets is de-rocegnised on its dsposal, The gain or 1oss arising from de-recagnition
of an assel s determined as the différence between the net dispesal proceeds, if any, and the
tarrying amount of the jteam. The galn of 0SS on de-recognition of an Nxed assel & recognsad i
profit and loss account,

Intangible assets

Ry ogtion

Intangible assets include the value of business and office operation softwares acquired separately
aNd 8re recognised st cost and are carmed st cust less acoumulated amortisation

Subsequent expenditure on intongible assets s recognised as o seporate osasel, only whan i s
probable that future economic benelits assocated with the (tam will flow to the Company and the
cost of such software can be measured reflably,

Armortsation

AN intangible asset that is assessad as having a finite uselul life is amortised an a straight line basis
over a period of useful life based an the management best estimates of 3 or 5 years




An Intangible assat with indefnite useful lives will be tested faor mpairment annually o whenever
there s an Indication of Impsinmant

2.13.8 Account recervable

Account receiveblie at the balance sheet date is stated at amounts which are considered realisabie
Specific sllowence 1s made for receivables consdered to be doubtful for recovery

2.13.% Provisian for doudtful assets

Frovisions, specific and general, are mada on autstanding expasuré on the basis of quarter ¢no
review by the management as per Bangladesh Bank's provision polcy,

Tha Company hs:¢ made excess provisian than the regulataey roquirament on the basis of
management’s assesament where there are possidiiities of Impairment in future.

2.13.10 Write off of lease, bans and sdvances

wrie-off refers to a reduction in recognisec valpe, acknowleoging that an asset's value nay
diminished or became zero, Generally, this term apphies to investments tor which any retum s Now
deamed impossible ar uniikely. Conseguently, the asset's patenbal retum s cancelled, and remaved
{wriaten off) from the Company's balance sheet. Hawever, these write alf will not undermane ar affect
the ciaim amaunt against the barrower.

In compliance with Banglagesh Bank DFIM circular No. 2 dated L April 2019, loans, advances and
Investment an be written off to the extent that {1) classified as Bad Loss for ot least 3 consecutive
years (i) 100% pravision is maintomed ard (1) coses have been filed under Arthe-Rin Adatat Ain,
1003. Mowever, for small Inan up 1o tk. 200,000, case Mling under Artha-Rin Adalst Ain, 2003 s not
mandatory

Recovery against debts wntten-off are adjusted with provision for lease, loans and advanies
following OFIM Circuiar No. 11, dated 23 December 2003,

2:13.11 Income taxes

Income tax expenses compnses of current tax and delferrad tax

Current tax

Froyesion for cuyment tax has been made on taxable business Income @ 37.5% cansidering ailowabs
gxpanses and @ 20% on dividend income and © 15% on capital gain on sale of markatane
sacuntes os per Income Tex Act 2023

Deferred tax

Oeferred tax is provided using the balance shest appecach for all temporary differences ansmag
between tax hases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the fimancial starements
Deferred tax ssaets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future texable proit will be
#vailable ageinst which the temporary differences can be utilised. Tax rate & 32.5% & uweed to
determine daterred tax,

2.13.12 Provision for accrued expenses

Provisions have been recognised in the balance sheel as follows!
a. when the Company has a present obligaton, legal or constructive as a result of a past event,

b. when it is probable that an autflow of resources embedying econaomic benefits will be reguared tu
seftie that otligstion; and

c. when a reilablo estmate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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Employee benehits
Short term bensfits

Salares, bonuses and allowonces are reCognised a5 an cxperse when assooaied servicez are
rancderad by the amployees of the Campany

Delined contribution plen

The Company operates o contributory Provedent Fund spproved by Rational Board of Revenue [NBR)
for its permanent emplayees, The Prowdent Fund is administared by the Board of Trustees and s
funded by equal contributions both by the permanent employees and the Compeny ©10% of bas
saiary of the employees. The Company recogmsas the cantribution to the defined benefit plan as an
expansa when associated sarvices are rendered by the employees in exchange for those contrnbutions

Dedined Oeneflit plan

The Company operates @& funded Gratuity Scheme approved by National Board of Raverue (N&& |, for
s permanent employess, Employees are entitied to gratuity benefit aftar completion of six manths af
comtinuuus service with the Comedny. Length of servica i counted from the date of ining. The
Company s contnbuting to the fund as advised by the actuary In the actuarial valuaton report
Provisian for Gratuity Schneme s accounted for as an expense under salares and alowances

Other employee beneits

The Company operates a group life insurance scheme for its employees. The premium of Insuranct
scheme 15 accounted for as expense in the financial year in which the associated services are renceras
Ly the employees,

Lontingent liablitkes and contingent assets

The contingent liabilities ang cantingent assets are not reflected in the balance sheet byt 1he
existence of canbngent liability = disclosed in the financial statements. A contingent Habaty & »
probabie obigation that arses fram past events whose existence will be confirmed by occurmence «

non-occurrence of uncertain future events not within the Control of the Company or a present
goiigation that s not recognised because outflow of resources s not Lkely or obligaton camst be
measurad refiably

Proposed dividend

Dividend proposed by the Boarg of Directors for the yoar 15 recogresed and is sccounted lor after
approval by the shareholders at the annual general meesting,

Reyenue recognition

Income from long term ang short term finance

Income from long ang short term finance s recognised as revenue when the interest S due. Hawavey
Income accrued against loans with classification status of Special Mention Account (SMA) and betow s
not recognised as ravenue but transferred to interest suspense account. Suspended nterest i
recugnised as income orfy when % Is recelved

Lease inctiine

Lease income, that |s the excess of gross lease rentals receivable over the cost of the leased asset,
represents the total unearmned income at the time of eéxecution of lease, The unearned income |4
sllocated over the pernod of lk=ase in ¢ pettern reflecting & CONStANT retum on the neot Inyestmers
However, Income accrued sgainst Isases with classification status of Specal Mention Account (SMA)
and below is nat recognised as revenus but transferred to mterest suspense account following DFEIM
Circular Na 04 dateg 26 July 2021. Suspended intersst (& recognised as Incomée only whan it s
received
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Income fram dividend

Dividend income from Investments in fisted equity shares Is recognised during the periad in which
they are Seclared In the amual gengral meeting irrespective of receipt. Dividend income from
preference shares is recognised on accrual basis considering the establishmeant of right 1o receive the

Income from gain of s@¢ of sharas

Capital gains arising from the sale of shares histed on stock exchanges are recocgnized upar
realization

Income from deposits {mainteining with Banks and NBFls)

Interests from short term deposits and fixeéd 0eposits are recognised on an accrual Desis taking into
accownt the peincipal outstanding and the effective rte over period of maturity,

Fee based incorme

Fee DASEs INCOIME IS recognised &5 revenue when it s received.

Interest suspenss

Interest Income on lgese, long term finance, short term finance and sdvanrces with clacsification
status of Soecial Mention Account (SMA) or below are nat recognised as revenue but credited o
Interest suspense account following OFIM Circular No. D4 dated 26 July 2021

Interest pald on deposits, borrowing, eLc,

Interest pald comprises of the Interest payable on extermal borrowings and ingividuad and
institutional deposits and are recognized a8 they accrue

Impairmont of assets

The carryitg amount of the fixed assets and intangible assets are raviawad at each reparting dam |
whenever there |5 any Indication of imgairment. If any such Indication exists, the assels recoverabie
amount 5 astimated, An impairment 10ss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of the asser
exceads itd recoverable amount, Impairment losses, I any, are recugnised in the profd and loss
account

Reoiated party dicclosure

I'he Company carmad out transaction In the crdinary course of business on en srns-length hasis with
its reloted partics. Farties are consdered &8 related f one party has the abilty to cantral the cther
party o aexercise significant mfluence over the other party 10 making fmancial and opératirg
socisons. Related party transactions have been disclosed in note 43. Transactions with redated
parties are executed on the same terms, including interest rate and collateral, as those prevailing at
the time for comparable trarsactions with other custorners of similar Ccregentials and do nat Invaive
mure than g normal rnsc

Earnings per shore

Eamings per share has bean caltulated In accordance wath IAS 33: Eamings Per Share ond has been
shown on the face of prafil and loss account and computaticn s stated In note 37

Events after the reportng penod

The financial statements were authorised for Issue on 28 Apnil 2025 by the Soard of Directors of the
Comgpany who has the power ta amend the financal statements atter ssue, There (8 no sgnifcant
event that has occurréd between the Belance Sheet dote and the date when the financa statoments
were authorised for =sue by the Board of Directors of the Company

3




Subseguent o the Balance Sheet dato, the Board of Directors recommended BOT 1.00 per share a5
Caah dividend (10%) in its Board of Directors meaeting hold on 28 April, 2025, The propased dividend
5 subject to shareholders’ appraval at the forthcoming Annual General Meetng (AGM) Except the
fact ax stated sbove, No CircuMstantes have asisen since the Balence Sheet date which would reguire
adjustments, or dsclosure In the finsncal statements

Financial risk menagement paiicies and objectives

The Board of Directors of the Compary sets the overall risk appetite ang philosophy; the nuk and
Gopited framework underpins delvery of the Board’s strategy. It is the Company policy to optimise
retume while maintaining a strong capital base and credit fang to support business growth sng
meet regulatory capital requirements at all times. A structused snd hands-on risk management
system is i place within the Company to address risks relating to crodit, market. lgusdity
operations, money laundering and terrorist firancing, ana other additional risks

Credit nsk

Credit nsk s the risk arising from the possibility that the Compeny will Incur 5505 from the failure
of customers to meet their ioan repayment obligations, The Company has segregoted duties for the
officers invelved in credit-related activities, Tha major activities are divided amangst the Credit
Department (credit evaluation), Crede Administration Department (eredit administration], and
Collection and Spacial Assets Nanagement Department (credit montorng and recavery)

A detaded Credit Risk Management #olicy and Gudelines exists adopting INcustry best pracrces and
Bargladesh Bank guicefines to minigate credit risks. This includes malataining a policy for restrichag
maximum exposura 10 4 singe ¢entity; a poiicy for risk-based pricing; and consderations of key
Industry parameters in the pre-financing phase. Furthermere, an imernal risk-based approach in
cvaluating risks and crodit reports from the Credit Information Buresu helps to minimize nsk of
default,

Market risk

Market fisk can be defined as the rk af losses m an and off-balance sheet pesitions ¢ a Financia!
Institutions {F1) arsing from adverse MAYEMENts In market rates or prices such as intorest rates,
equiy prices, foreign exchange ratos, commadity peices and generd! credit spreads, The Campany %
exposed o marke! nsk because of positons held In its lending pottfolios and Mg hor-interest
Investments.

Interest rate risk arises when the value of an FI's tash flows changes due 10 a change in the absolute
level of interest rate. It Is managpd daily by Treasury department and reviewed manthly by Agset
Liahility Cammittee {ALCO) to monitor IMerest rate movements and devise alternatives to mitigste
possible irterest rate risks

Equity nsks can result from changes in the Company's non-interest income and reserves ansng trom
changes in equity prices/income of the equity portfolio held by the Company. Such exposure may
toke the form of listed ang unlisted eguity. The type, nature and amount of equity exposure beld by
the Compeny is trivial compared to ils exposure in other 02rning assets. The market value of the
aquity assots held by the Company at the balance sheet date is markadly higher than the cost price

Finally, volatilities in markets where the Cormpany operates - and the MAacroecomnImd situation
deneral - &% monitored by the Buginess Intelligence departmers, through analyses of
macroeconomic data and government policies, and majar market news and indicators.
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Licuicity risk

Liquidity nsk Is the rsk when the Company 1s unable to meet its Mnancal otrigations as they fall gue.
The Company's liquidity policy i< designed to anturs that it can meet its financial abiigations es they
fall due at &l times. Liguidity managament focuses on overall baiance shast strutture and the cortro
of risks arising from the exposum due to the mismatch aof maturities across the balance sheet and
from undrawn commitments and other contingent liabilities. The managemont of liquidity sk is
carmed out by the Treasury department under Boarc-approved palicy guldefines.

Compiance In liquiday management ¢ monkared and coorginated by Treaswry bath in respect of
internal policy and the regulatory requirements, The liguidity management is moaitared Yy ALCO an
3 reguiar basls, and cantingency plans sre prepared for managing strassad Jextreme situations

Operational risk

Operatonal risk of I0sses arces from fallures of the processes, policies, and systems that disrupt the
business, There are four main categaries of operational risis: people risk, pvoceas rirk, system sk,
and legal/compliance nsk,

Pecple risk represents the inadequacies In human capital of the Company. The prirmary nisk frmm
failure to attract, Mmanage, motivate, develop and retain competent resources and talent, The Human
Resources function and resoective departrment managers are always vigllant 1o mitgate oll peopie
risks

Process risk anses from falled Internal business processes, The Company retams a Businass Process
Re-gngineering department to constantly improve on the effectiveness and robustness of its intemal
processes and guidedings.

System risk atises from failed Internal systems. This encompasses nsks related to tranch
connectivity, MiS & other banking solutions, as well as other technical systems, The Company
undergoes regular system audit to Identify potential weaknesses end vulneradllites

In adgdition to the atove, the Risk Management Forum (RMF) = resgonsible for Icentifnng operatonat
nsks and take stops to mitigate such risks. The Forum routinely reviews operational processes and
evaluates the process in terms of efficiency and adequacy of the process to ensure adeaUAtE cantro!

Frevention of Maney Laundering & Anti Terrorism

Money Laundering & Terrarist Financing risk is defined as the loss ncurred as penalty and damages
in reputatian for being negligent in uphalding Anti-Money Laundering & Anti-Yerraonsm Acts. In order
to manage the risk, the Company has set up a stict grogram In line with Prevention of Money
Laundering & Anti-Terrorism Act and Bangladesh Sank guidelines

The Company has assigned a Chief Arti-Money Laundering Compliance Officar (CAMLED) ot the sfoad
Cffice and Branch Anti-Maney Launderng Comohance Officers {(BAMLCO) at branches o
independentty review transactions of accounts to verify suspicious transactions. The Company
developed guidelines to ensure prapes and strict adherence to the terms of the Prevention of Moy
Laundering & Anti-Tarrorsm Act. In addition, tontinuous traning 15 Deing imparted to officers and
executives at all levels to enhance expertice in Identifying suspicious activities and transactions

Addimonal Risks

Ay per DFIM Circular No. O3 of 2016, Integrated Risk Management Guidelines far Financial
Institutions, theso are additiona! risks that sre addressed Dy the Company. Key risks among these
are:
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2181 Reputatian Risk

Boputataon risks pre nsks thot orise from negative publicky regarding the Company snd it
aperations, The AMF of the Company has in place metrics to monitor all relavant non-financial
reputational risks reiating 1o the Company

2.18.2 Strategic Risk

Strategic nsks arise from poor busingss decisions, sub-par execution of strategy, or fallure to
respond Lo changes in business environment.

In mtgating Strategic Risk, the Company hos increasingly been rellant on data-driven decimon
making; with the creaton of 1he Busin2ss Analytics wing to assist senior managemant by provitng
actionabee intelligence and enabling informed strategic decisian-makirg,

2143 Compeance sk

Compliance risk s tha risk of legal sanction or material loss ansing from the Company's failure to
aghere to laws, ils own regulaticns, codes of conduct, standards of best practices, or the possbility
of Incorrect interpretatyon of faws or reguiations

Comgliance risk management Is embedoed In the day-to-day (o aperawons of the Company. Relevan
depsrtments are infarmed of latest legal and requlatory requiramants. Routine reviews of intorna)
poidcies are canducted to ensure that they are in line with the prevailing laws and regulations

2.184 Environmental & Social Risk

Envirgnmental ard Socal Risk s becaming an intreasingly more immpartant part of the riek
management framework. Physical risks arsing from climate change are well-established, and pose &
veritable cost of transition to incduals, corporatians and societies alike, The Company 15 and has
olways been cormmmitied to ensunng the highest standards in ity pursult of sustainability in every
avenus of its activities Lo reduce the harmiful effects of its oparstions on the planet

To ensure that every aspect of the Campany remams socially respansible, the company ansurss that
it 0oes not finance sectors that are deemed 10 have & negative irmpact an sociely by perfariming an
Environmental and Sacial Dye Diigence (ESDD) as part of its crodit appraisal process Emphass 15
Qiven W inwatives that are considensd green and sustainatie. With the help of an exclusion list, the
Company is also able 10 avoed high envirormental nsks associsted with any iinoncing

By subscribing to the Globel Reporting Initietive's "Core Cption®, the Company reaffinny its
commitumant 1o & more éguitable and resilient planet through bBringing transparancy In repoting o
Its own and financing operations’ impact on the environment and society

219 BASEL 11 and Its implementation

To align with international best peactices and th make the capital more risks sensitive an woll o
more shock resilient, Bangladesh Bank introduced the *Basel Accord for Financial Institutions (BAF])

on a trial basis from January 1, 2011, Followng the trial penod, the full implementation of the Basel
Accors framework commensed on Jenuary 1, 2012, under the guigeiings bitied “Frudentil Guidolines
on Capitol Adeguacy and Market Discipline for Financinl lnsttutiors (CAMD)" which inclode
Subsequent amendments. Thess guidelines outline critical aspects such as Minimum  Capitsl
Requirament (MCR), Adequate Capital, ané Disclosure reguiremants, all of which must be adhered to
by financial institutions to ensure regulatory compliance. According to the CAMD guidelines, financial
INSHTUTIONS are required to maintain 3 Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of at least 10%., In response
United Finance PLC has estpblished o Basel [mplementation Unit (BIU) te cwversee the timely
adpptian of Basal 11. The most recant Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) status Is detalled in nots 113
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Statutory reserve

As per section 8 of the Financlal Company Act, 2023 and megulation & of the Financial Insteutons
Regulations 1534, every Non Banking Financial Insttution (NBFI) i3 reguired to transfer ot least 20%
of ts cumrent year profit to the fund untll such reserve fund equal to it paid up share capital and
share premium (f any). Accordingly during the year the Company has transferred 3DT 41,950,000
(2023: BOT 29,000,000 to the s1atutory reserve




2.21 Gaing concem

The Company has adequato rescurtes to continue its operation for foresaoable future. For this
reason, the directors continue to adapt the going concern basis In preparing the Hinaricial statements
The current credit lacilibes and resources of the Company grovide sufficent funds to meet the
present reguiraments of £s existing businesses and cperationg.

.22 Branch accounting

The Cornpany has twenty two brarches (including head office) and two booth offices, wen no
gverseas beanch as at 31 December 2024, Accoums of the branches are maintained at he heod
office fram which these financial stotements are drawn up,

2.3 Status of compliance of International Accounting Standards and Internaticnal Financial Reporting

Standards
Name of the standords Ref. Status

First-bme Adaption of Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards 1FRS-1 Nat Applicable
Share Based Payment IFRS-2 Kot Applcable
Business Combinatons IFRS-3 Not Applicable |
Hon-current Assets Held for Sale and Déscontinued Operations IFRS-5 Nat Applicable
Exploration for and Evaluaton of Mineral Resources 1IFRS 6 Not Apphicable
Financial Instruments! Disclosures IFRS-7 Applied*
Operatng Segments [FRS-8 Not Applicable
Frmancial Instruments IFRS-9 Applied
Consoligated Financial Statements 1FRS-10 Not Applicable ‘
Joint Arrangements IFRS-11 MNot Applicabée
Distlosure of Interests in Other Entities IFRS-12 Not Applicabie
Fait Value Measurement IFRS-13 Apprad |‘
Regulatory Detarral Accounts IFRS- 14 NOL Appilicebie ‘
Revenue form Cantracts with Customers IFRS-15 Apphed ‘
Leases 1FES- 16 Appled |
Insurance Contracts IFRS-17 Not Applicable |
Presentation of Financial Statements 1AS-1 Appled*
Inventories [AS-2 Not Applicable ‘
Stotement of Cash Flows [AS-? Appled* ‘
Accounting Palicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Efrors IAS-8 Apphed
Events After the Reporting Period 1AS-10 Appled
Income Taxes 1AS-12 Applicd
Property, Plant and Equipment IAS-16 Apphed
Employee Benefits IAS-19 Applied
Azcpunting for Governmaent Grants and Disclosure of Govammant 1A5-20 Not Applicahis
Assistance
The Effects of Changes in Forelgn Exchange Rates 1AS-21 Appiicd ‘
Borrowing Cost 1A5-23 Applied
Relates Party Disclosures 1A5-24 Appliec
Accounting and Reporting by Ratirement Benefit Flans 1AS-26 ot Applicatile
Segarate Financal Statements 1AS-27 Not Applicatile
Ihvestments in Associntes and Joint Ventures 1AS-J8 Naot Applicable
Financiod feporting in Hyperinflationary Economies 1AS5-29 Not Applicabile
Earnings per Share 1A5-33 Appiled
Interim Financial Reporting 1AS-34 Apphed
Impairments of Assets IAS-36 Applied
Provisions, Contingent Liabidties ang Contingent Assets 1AS-37 Applied
Intangible Assets 1AS-38 Applied
Investment Property IAS-40 ot Applicable
Agnouture IAS-41 Not Applicabile

*The regulatory reguiréements differ with the standards, relevant disclosurns have been made o
accordance with Bangladesh Bank's requirements {please see note 2.1)




Amaount s 80T

2024

Cash

Laih i hang (note- 3. 1) 1,328 )
BaGnte wih Banglavests Bank ang (1 agant Dankis) Inote-4 2 .

Lash hang

In Incy currency 1,539,500
in foreign Surrency

Balange with Bangiodesh Bank ana 35 a0t STETY

In gl curmercy (witn Banglacesn Barn) ‘ 207.453.205 | a7 G108
Sanall Bark a8 agert of Rangladess Bank (Cw Drrenty) | |

207,450,205 247,918,039

Statulory depasns
Cash Ruserve Reauiroment (CRR) and Statutory Liquidity Reserve (SAR)

Cordancs

Lash Sesarye Requirement and Statulocy LQuidity Reserse Nave been calculated angd mai

O ol the Fmance §

% of the Finangla Clrrutar No. O aat

(6 November 2 10 Novembet el June, 2020 ard
DFIM crcules no 2021
The Canht Hewwreve Regursme the Companr's tarm deposits recaived fromm pubilic at the rate of 1 2
CHOSSs) andd maintained weh Bangladesh Bank o Current sccount and 5% Statueory Liguidty Beserve. inciuong ORI
I [otal Satslies Pas Deen mamtaingd i the form of balence with Bangladesh Eank, other Banks aed Firan
Imatitutons, Both The 'eservies mairtained by the Company am i excess of the Statuliry regquirements, s woovwn Qelrw
n] Cash Reserve Reguirement (CRR)
Actusl reserve maintained (note-5,2) es § 37 S1NON |
Hegured reserve (L 1 0N Puliic sepssils) 196,899,350 | 415,676 058
urplus 10,550 833 31,241,902
2] Statutory Ligquidity Resorvs (SLR)
Atud! reserve maintaned mouding CRR (note-3.8) ) 145677114 1.753.4851.72
!  reserve (5% on areraoe lota! latilibes) 824 193 004
Durples A 321,457,109
The surpus for SLR mostly comgr of mvestment In INerest pamags Troasury Sdly amauniing 1o BOT 482.95 mihon an

fixe2 depodits (frew FOR) amaunting to BOT 24 of maintained wirh afferent Banks and Financial [nstzusors

ALTUAI reser v Inaintarsy | Indluding CRR)

Cash i hand

S2LNCH with Bandwcdiesh Aank ang its agent bank(s)

Salance with banks and ather NNancal Meitubans [sxcapt han FERY (note-3 4 1 DU E Y
INVestment in Govarnmeart securties sxcen! countes repe
1,753,451,723
2E
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2024 1023
t ' exCe }
Bra ‘
[ .
1. ' | ¢
" '
' 53 .
) > |
\ . |
[ K ‘
s ” Y ‘
L . 2
' , " ‘
| v :
¥ «
! 1 4

A i53.693.378 WTFRTINLE:

3623098 376 1,573,594, 182

Cutrent dopagits

x At M A " -
Brat Bank 5
N
hk s Nank
castom ¢ - ( 7
' ik 5, 168 $
' sk L
! L
139,919,446 252,014,344
Shert-term doeponit (STD)
w) Nank § - —
1A I8 4
1 Pank
v K ¢
426,979,838
Fixed deposits
" f Levi N
ank £y
'
eroa .
'
nd \r ' \Daf ¢ " - "

2.415,000,000 1,105,000,
3.623.698 376 18739941




Amountin BDT
1034 2023

al Naturity { 3 of Dalance wan Danks 2 other Ninancyl institunons
wr 139.9 ‘a R
1 1 180 778 9 4 3
| ' 1.15 A
"oty Y At ont ns )
- he I re ea 1422 ) ‘
sar Bhut not 1w S Ve

5 Monoy at call and short notice

o Investmanis

wasL
Has '

Nat - R | 1

fia feah Bank t
oNeErnme

075

— doary shares (Pt 1 15.2¢ !
1Mt M Drefe y gnares (note-6 71 1. 191254, 01% 194,294
nnant bands 10-§ ALV R
1,206,556, 389 AEAL 330,00
828200803 A.531,336.323
esTrIen | ordinary shares
Robx Axiata Limite | —— YA\ B —— Y
1%.362.270 15,262,370,
14 vesumant tec Ins ance Lt DNy Tile
} 1 ANY (rar TT R ( dinar rares of ted Ir rance Campany Limited, a HsIng puDI( n f
ré #r SNy 1. Sabsequentyy th Ny reosived bongs shares in 07, 2008
<3 A \ =
he tnt an f ur y sha f ted Insurance Campany e ¥ haid by the Company '
Onair
M-
™ )
n us
Sonu
S0
As on Decembier 3L, 2024 the markel value © Tx. 36,5 (dosing market price) of the above 4,450,000 nares w




Amount in 80T
2024 2023
h1h  Investment in DI COMIDINKE
Businuss Segment No. of shares Cost price Market price
Telgoogrmmunicaton 6,23 262,370 TAL N0

Investments In markelabie secunties are vasied at cost at the Balsnce Sheet date, if market price 1S ower than cast in that
CASA TOQUINed Provision ase kept n pradil and ioss accoont. Unreafized gan Is not accaunted for in finanoal statemerts.

As of 31 Decermber, 2024 the market vaue [clusing markat pnce) of the above shares was Taka 142,507 aganrst coRt price
al Taka 262,370,

.2 Investment in areference shares

Preferesca Share ' Recant Ereragy and Sower Lig 33,794,035 73,754,039
Prefermece Shate! Cocfudence Power Raropur Linyted 20,000,000 €0,000.200
Prederence Shame Corhaencs Pawer Dogra Unit-2 Limited 12,500,000 37,50C,000
Predprwecs thare: Tity Soqar Industoes Limited 50,000,000 75,000,000
Predereece share: City Sogar Industries Limited 50.000.000 75.000.000
Prefeceace share: W Akberali & Co. Umged §0.000,000 20,000,000
Mreferoece share! Presieds Camunt MILs Lirmrvted 13%,000,000 175,000,000
Proference shate! Pasamaurd Testle Limites 60.000,000 5,000.000
Prefereace shatg: Unvted Tank Yerminal L1o 150,000,003 180,000,000
Preferwcce share: faylion Knaes Limited 300,000,000 #00,000.200
Predecdace shate | Shedech Ceramics Limited 140,000,000 200,000,200
Predecdace shate: Loylion Style Limted 100,000,000 200,000 200
Prefecesce thote: Anants Aogareia Limitzd 200000000 ) 300000800
291294010 1,496,393,010
) Yveauvent in bonds
Subsriiinale Bond: Mutyusl Trist Dank FLC [ I 1o.uon.eooJ
Subardinate Sond: Stancard Sank PLE. - 000400
= 30,000,000
L) Matonty grouping of Investments
Dn derang
Up tu 1 meath 73,794,015 43,754,019
Over 3 morth 23Ut agt more than 3 months 29875802 A0
Over 3 morths but not more than 1 year JO0.A33.632 257,500, 000
Over 1 year but not mare thas 5 yaars £10,000.000 1,167.500,800
Over 5 yeals 15,000,400 15,000, 000
—22200888)  ___LSALSSENS
? Lease. loans and advances
it firoed category-mite breds v
Inside Bangladesh
Lease recewvable (note-7.2) 6,707,197,027 6,988.211,561
Loank (mote 7.3} 13256160054 30688526314
_A5,403.357.980  10.378.737,875
Outside Banagladesn -
~A35:403.257.980 20376, 732.873 .
7.4 Lease recewane
Net eass receivable {roge-7.2.1) 6,542.945,005 £,353,844 507
Interest receivale —— 24RO SAJGN.NA
202,322,027 _SA88.2)0581
7.2.1  Net wasa recaivatie

Gross lease receivetie
Less! Uneamed legse mcome

7.700.473.356 1241300820
7

' [H42 382 0143
— 5332943000 5,393,846,307




Amount in BDT

1024 2023
{22 Wovenent of net lesse receyohivy
Balance a3 ¢ January 01 6. 233.846.502 6,742,051 855
AJAILon during the yoar Jae.8ar.7y? 2703 993,735
Haalisatien during the siae 2,877,765 234} {5.053 00§ 873}

£,542,949.009 !.32;."‘!!82

’3 Ladrys
Term loan B AN 708 40 SA7inN? a2 |
Horme laan 3,066 291,190 3,283,991 959
SHOr Lea [nan st U5F asvances 711132450 LOIv.01, 9/
Interess recelvanie | a0) 448 pan PLYNLI YR
~12,756,160,354  _13,888,320. 308
73 Movement of 1= oan receivalies

2.3

Balance s on Januery 01
AQODon dunng the yodr
Baalsation duning e gaar

Moyemest of hame Icon recarsablen

9,322,607 413
5.210,440,000
16,229 1350 044)

Balance as on January 01 3,783,991 955 3 242,604 052
ASSmon during the year 625,415,440 236, 490 996
Sanlsation during the year (144 S16.216) (895 343 6A5)

~3064,890,120 . 2.282.991,020

r3 Movement of shavt term joan and ISP advances receivadies
Halatce o6 O January 02 1,009,633 97 1,063,126, 306
AJGINDN BUNTG the year 4,533,384.109 3.2945, 740,707
Anpatuation Surng thue year (£ 531 807 Baqa) | 5,266 240 OLE

-
o

Dresc up gf mierest receivatie

Term loan
tome lomnm
Shart tarm an anil CSF advances

—221112,206 _1,023.83)237 .

231,857 A2 13,3087 494
100 490,077 2% 514,130
0,802 561

I Muturty grouping of ledse, loans and advwances
On cemand
U 18 31 meetn 1,008,303 698 1,025 540,454
Ouver 1 manth Bt not mone tran 3 manthe 1,912 358265 LYRY A0 652
Over 3 meaths but not moce than | year 6,111.922.484 6,114,652 435
Over 1 y&ar DUt not mare han = years 7,499,534 574 8,705 885,115
Over 5 yean 2.930,728,587 24672, L12 955

~A2.462.257,980 30376737875

1.5 Lease, loans and advances on the basis gl signifitart concantraton

A) Lease, 08NS A1) afennoes 10 COMpanies o frms i ahich the Directors 1.500.00% 3,654, 189
of the Company have nterpsts

b) Lease, oams ard sdvances to Chisf Fxecutive ani othel Senior
Executives




2

C) Number

& heres mith autstanding smogunt and classifed leage, loans

Hod pdvancay exteeding 15% of total capitel of the Company = ps

Amount in BOT

folows
Total cApSM oF the Comvipany
Number of cleras
Ampunt of SUISTANEING MYANCes
ATIDNNE of ciassdied sdvances
Measures 1aken far mocwory
#) Industry-mise osiribution of 2358, NAaNs 320 aIvances
1 Agrirultural snctar:
" Cop
U) Foultry & livestock
€) Fishevies

d) Otners Asncutre (Coid Storave, Bicfyel, Seed, feed,

AQryealated thar INSIAUOOE & servites)
Induadria! sestor
Al Servce Industry
B Yaod orcduction,/processng wdustry
L) Crarmical B Fharmacewncal
€) Pastic insusiry
e) Gannena
i Testile
a) Paper, Prnting and Peckanmy mdustry
h) Iron, Steel & Engmneering wdustry
1) Leathar & lealher orodints
{1 Bvectronics and slectrea Ingusary
¥} Teecommuncatonyinfarmmation Techeoloay
1) Jute angd rxe producs
M) CamantAlZancrets and allind industry
N Giass and cerami madustry
Powar, Gas, Waber and Santary Awrvics
Yrarsport & Communicaton
Real Lstate & Housing
Trace and Commerce
Others

.

- s ke

¥ Geograchical Incaticon wese losse, loans and advances
inslde Bangladesh

Urban

Dhaks Division
Crattogram Divisen
Khuing Divson
“annah Division
Rarqowr Duigon
Sarshal Division
Mymensmon Civison
Svivet Doniven

Rural

Onoma Dveisien
Chattogram Oiisan
Khedits Dnision
Santhioh Divaon
Rangper Oxisian
Farshal Divmion
Mymaensanun Civison
Syihet evsion

Outside Bangladesh

Sector wis ake, Lars and advances

Pubiic sector
Couperative sector
Privale sectir

Size wise lupse. lcan portfclio contentratan
Cortage, Micro, Smull & Megum Entaprise Finanong [CMSNE)

1023 2023
31338192877 3,241 337,136
i Nl
NU NIt
NI Nil
Not spobceble Mot spciicatile
865,795,113 129,754,418
252,748,967 338179, 829
504,328 J32,253
160,010,142 L71.090.557
1,336,694 824 1.05€.615,49%

2,517,450,707
1,453,733,07%

636,304,733 12340000
1,020,996 .668 4745551
238, 319,142 297 ANJ 4
985,752,140 1333032 040
1,213,705%7 S48, 400457
130,304 358 20A.567.047
112,620,861 154,851,059
48421778 68,743 46
232,245 5171 235 457,791
445,722,095 133.261,20)
Ma0zm3 203,563,044
56,159,400 A3 684090
$52.385.7%8 TXI.197 .48
3.200,926,748 1375 337,644
4.080022134 S A8 ta8. 612
stz.zm.zﬁ‘ BO€ 0230 34
_A9,463,357,980 __ 30,376,737,875

7,903,324 707

2,400 467 825
LU57 312 634

B.815.02]1. 606

2,0%80,602,127 2833087 018
1,300,257 422 113075841
1,334,450,38% 1050 235840
1,137.853.10¢ 1 477 88,740
633,094 672 E97,. 765,115
619,758 015 716,030,634
A8, ASH,228 AR0.382.506
T16,064,890,736__18,343,448,304
1,891,862.4%7 0od 200,038
My e 367,950,577
421,167,507 166,950,846
M5.870,00 ZALII0. 144
315,442 748 178,401,557
38,506,622 57,826,513
113,962,350 $:.551.910
2870258 21103206
3,398,467,244 2,032,20%,570

T35.353,357,980_ __#0,378,731,615

. 19.963,352.380 _ _ ZVATGIITKIS
~12.463,357,380, _20,376,737,875

7,806 658,780
11,656 01

9.501,728.287
7%

Ocher than Coltage, Micrn, Small & Medium Enterprize Finanting (CNSME]

~32.463,337,200, _20,920.0270.873




Amount in 8D

2024 1023
Particulars of lease, Dans and a0vanes
0 LOgse, M and davances comigered 9o0a 1Y respect of waich the 3,202 961457 2.904,650, 851
Certpany s fully secured
" Least, Qans and acvances CooSioedd good oY respec of which the 7,780,327 .33% 7045 526,990
Compoany (5 partially securad
M) LEEe, JOAIG ANg aUvanies considered JOOS against whith the Company
hols no securtty gther than the dettnrs' persanal guarantee
) LEINR, 10ANE ANg Mivares comsidersd god serured By the personal 5,400,069,184 10,420, 50427
Underiiking of 0ne Or mEre partes (it a3dion to the personel guarsntee
of the debeors
vl Claistlied Lesse, itam ard s2vances agoinst which ni provisizn has deen
made
19,463,357 980 20,376,737, 875
V) Lsace, l0ans and ACvances aue oy Directors, OMosrs of e Corvaany of
any of them sehar separately o joutly with any alher persces
Wi} Leasy, lcane ang advences dJue rom CTompanies of Hss o which the 4,906,500 24658, 184
rectors have interest at Dieclors. Parindrs o managing apents
Companies, as membders.
i) Maamum 1058 avoont o avacces, indudimg tempacary advantes made -
At any tene guring the year to Direclors or Manapers or Officers of the
LCompany 3¢ say of tham either segarptely of [ointly wan sy ather
person
) Minemom 1ot amount of acvances, nCufng tenporary Advances
grasted owing the yoar t the Companas a¢ Hirms » wivdh tha Directon
Rave interest ¢u Diructory, Pertoers or Maagng spenis o n the cosw of
onvale Companies, as membears
. Ouie Trom Dacking Comgbomes and omer financal nstisuans
o) CIasefied Isase, iams und sacyances
%) Classfed lease, loans and advances o0 mhicm interest hac not 297,784 145 340, M2 125
bean charged
b) Increvse(cecradse ) Of speUNC provison sgamst classifed 1,287 5a0 124 095661
lease/loan
] Amount of loan writfen off 208,223 652 12,757,923
" Ampunt restsed] sganist loan prevousy woitten off 32,034 750 40,355, 128
*)  Provison kept agairat ans chassified as Sad\oss on the Gate of 769,388 811 555,007,551
PrEfanog e Doy s (rate -7 . Y)
n Srterent crecitod to Interest Suspenise sccourt (rote11.2) 112,250,059 201 785,521
R} Wreten off lsase, oans and advances
Opening Balance 1,.286,135.114 12731.348L,19]
Quring the year 208221653 BYNATI N
Cumulatsve to-tale 1 494,362,768 1,286,139.114
The amount of wrkten-off leases, lcans and advances 1or which law sats 1.308.455.45%4 1332995 800
have been fase
XU) In comphance with Banglaoesh Sank’s OFIM Croular No, 04, dated Aprd 01, 2024, titied "ldemtificaton & Noalizatiun

of Willtyl Defawters and Madsures 10 be Tacen Agamst Tham,” United Finance PLC established 8 dedicoted unit on ity
30, 2024, under the sapervision of the Ceputy General Manages (OGM) andl Deputy Managng Director (SMO). Thie
UME 15 entrusted with the responsilility of Identfwnd 408 meporting wiilld loan delacuiters, it st adharence to the
process and eteiine set forth o e Circylar

As of Decembtier 31, 2024, 1o borrowers have teen classfied ps wiifyl defauRters. Homever, In comphenos wih Secho
B8(2] of the cirtular, quanedy nil statements hove been duly submitted 1o the Cepartrment of Nassosl Institytions ano
Markuts (DFIM) of Sangadesh Bae m the prestibed format, Futhemmore, tUhe requued repons bhave also tisen
suhmitied 50 the Cred! Informabon Surnau (C18) of Bangladesh Bane

unnee Fimance FLC will groceec with the seat course of achion in scoordance with Secuons o(0) 400 617} of DeiM
Ciecalar s G4, datet Aped 053, JO2&, subject o Bangladesh Bank’s decison on the appeas ssomitted fiy the
respective barrowess, once any Individoa!s or Borrowers are i0entiNed as wilfol defauiters




Amount n DDT
2024 2023
79 Cassficsion of lnase, 10805 arg Advances
Uaclassifiea
Standard 17,553.412,194 10,067 088 375
Sgecul menton scmnt [SMA) 28406 34 .
18,454 160, 400 19.3090,75.470)
Clasufied m——
Sub-standory 85.060.553 1B0,2%€ 916
Cauttfis L34.7686,1397 150 680 934
Decifloss 165388 831 555,007,551
965,212, 581 985,085 405
A 2ASTISV200 . 20.370,737,873
8 Fixed assets induding tand, bullding, furniture and fixturos
Cost
Furmiture ane fixtures 125949072 L6727 575
OMce caulpment ax s uoe Uy &0l
Electrcal squgmaent 187,571,001 LB7.500. 9%
Software 45,255,157 45.203,15)
Motar veticies 81,04 610 $8.207, 758
OfMce space 177,890,411 127 00, 41t
Rightof-use sasets 222,546,124 22091801
821,901,582 B18,211.620
Less Accumuited deprediabon (492,673 596 (432.476,438]
Net book value at the and of the year [Annexure - A) —tAD 228,986
s Other assets
Inside Bangladesh
Imcome generating:
Income receivatie [rote-8 1) 215,038, 208 G574
Non-income generating!
Deferred tax 2sset (note-9.2) 2025109 12355968
Advance, JepasT and Dreodn! expun ey 85,19, 873 B BES 17)
Itecevalile frem provideat fund account (hote-G 3) 1871407 6,508,175
Advance corporate tax (note-S4) 2125868077 247717018
—246L190,893 _ 3,392,039.815
Outside Banagladesy d -
1) R L1 — XL T

%1 [nrome receivatiie amount mpeRsadls intereit recenahin on Investments sther than lease, loan ane advances and tharges
receivable from lease, 0ANS and Javances portfolo

9.2  Defermed tax asaet
Deferied tax has Deen rocogiived besed on deouchtee/tanabie temporary aifference ansing doe 1 deTerance » 1 cantying

MTount of e asarts a0 its fax Dase i accortance with the pmulsion of Inseenaticnal Arcounting Standard [LAS) |
Income Yixes ang unders the gudelines of Bargiades» Bank OFTM Circular no, 97 dated S1 Jay 2011

Carrying ameount Ceductble

at bxlance shoot Tax base temporary difference
Fixed 35565 M beck value 248,841 257 289,236,932 40,395,675
Liaiity 1o emplopees gratusty fung 16,220,403 16330.400

26,610,078

Aoplicabée tax rate 37:504
Deferrsd tax 3554t a5 on 31 Detemser, 2024 21231029
Deforeed Lax duset 0% on 31 December, 2023 12,353 088
Deferred (ax ncome duimg (e gedar 2024 [nule36) Y 877041
L L% | The ameunt omonses forftited account DAnces for the year 2015-2018 of resgned emgioyses who 40 NOL camploiw
1 reiired yoars af empiaviment with the Campany to be shigible to receive empioyer's contridution part. Realisatan of this

amaurt iu pending mubject te verification and auat of Urrted Fance Limited Empieyees Moewvdert Fund

s
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10

Mivaree coroorate Lo

SaMnce 4% on lanesty 01
Paid durino the voar

Barrowing frem banks. other linancial lastitutions and agonts

In Banglagesh {natw-30.1)
Outpae Bangindach

In Bangisdesh
Secured loans

Socured long turm loans

Secured short tarm loans

Dank overdralt

Arac B O

Gt Bank N A

Commercial Sank Of Ceylon #LC
Eastern Hank FLC

Mutual Trust Bankh L0

Dne Bk LT

Pme Bank PLT

Pubak Nank PLC

Stardiard Chartered Bank
City Bank PLC

lmnea Commercal Benk PLE
wWoorn Bank

Total Sank overdraft

Shert term loan

0t Bank NA

Standaro Channereo Dank

Saraiados Bank &epurchase saresmere (REPOD)
Tatal short 1erm loan

Total secured loan
Unsecured loans

Unsucured 10na term loans

Bangfadest Bans (Rehnance)

Bancisdesh Barne [Prafinence)

Loan from SME Foundaten Refinarde SChame
Noo-Coovertitde Zero Cowpor Bend

Total unsecured long term laans

Unsecered short term loans
Short term loans
O8H Finance ALC,

Mardun Fnarce & lovestment Umnes
Alllgrce Finanie A.C

Tatal snsecured loans

Total borrowing from Banks, ather financial institutions and agents

Amount in BOT
2024 2023

2.047,727.019 196,244 400

__.3’13.111-3.5 ——H9.472.587
m_mu

B.OSH, 535,199 7,482,258.800
038935793 781331870
153,319,700
A%2.01%

94,099,311 41,4801 486
LE7. 704,047 109,538,153
188145571 1372 008

4,784 547 A2 AL
95,10%.0uL
255478200 141 514 129

A1,785.420 17.158 541
163,785,145 113,061 045
339,665,033 126260041

56,637 —— (7., W 7

2,031,458 468 1,127,270,842
- W0, 000 0G0
170,000,060
238900850
408,901,550 390,000,000
—e40.300018  __1317,270,642
767009,114 J33,706.560
1,200,764 667 LETIATSE ORY
41,800,000
26132296
5.098,575.781 5003982028
400,000,000
20,000,000
520,000,000 *

030,223,799 _Z,ABL23L,879




Amount In BDT
2024 2023
1032 Analvsis Ty Sacunty 20AUE DOCraming fram Danks, niar francial RSTAULENS and aceants

Secured (FOR pHe00ed as secunty) 2A08.901,550 1L.517.270.0M2
Uesecyrad — s D300, 299  5.563.982.028
RO TS TASIISLET).
103 Matunty arauping of horrowana from Denks. gttt financial instlliticng and acents
On demandg .
Vo 10 § month 1,089,158 543 197 50% 840
Over | manth Dy wEhin 3 morths £73,312,737 B57.847.51]
Over 2 manths but mithn 2 year 3,782,753,435 3,942 665,554
Owver L year St within S ypars 2,5313,711.085 2,170,268.£95
Quer § vears . 31,955 017
—2008935.700  ___7.181,231,670
1 Deposits and other accounts
Current Deprosits & OtHE! STV e,
fills pavanie
Savings tank deposes
Teom deposity (rote 11,1} 11,3¢/) 864 015 13,6%2.882.96)
Haarer contificates o depowt .
Qiher Cegosns (note-11.2) By 667,137 548 19¢,357

—i4.307,832,032  ___13.250,001,720

1LY Tem deposits

Deposas fram Sarves and finanoal institutions
Deoosts lrom other than Banks and fdandiyl nstitutams 11,367 HENL RIS

~A1,367,864,803 ___12.837.48230)

These represant degosas fiom ndviduals and INstIutiong under e Company's 1eem depost schemes for # pencd of not
s han theee moning

3111 Sectorowiee Break-up of Tarm deposas

Govesmment

Banks ang foancad mettutions

OUwer pulic

FOrRIGn currency

Fruate ——dl IO 8IS. I3 EN2.SHZJES

11.1.2 Matunty analvsis of term depoots

#) Maturity analysis of depesits from banks & faancial institutions

Payacie an demang

Up to 3 month

Over 1 marsh it wrhin 3 moeths
Owver 3 months but within 1 vesr
Over 1 yead but wathin 5 years
Over 5 yaars bot wahin 10 vearns -
Cver 10 yodrs -

b)) Maturity analysis of deposits from other than banks & fnancial irstitutions

Payatie en domang -

Up to 1 ranth 1,032,234, 4580 IRULR SR L
Cwer | monta but withiin 3 momhs 1,745,254 745 1.991.579. 514
Over 3 montas ot waehin | vesr 3,267 ,097,508 2,888, 175,316
Crwmr 1 year But within 5 yean 5,145 304 364 7,199,243 582
Ower 5 pears bul withen 10 years 1772873114 42,3 .hE1
Orer 10 years :

TR X TTRTCN 7,083,

11,362.864.815 _ _A3.697.88236)
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1l

12

21

12.0.1

1212

1213

Other fensams

Amaunt in BOT

3024 3033

This reprecents Gapcsits agaast financing which % advente rental and secwity Orposts received from clents 8t e
Inceptinn of alnwng 30y 100507108 Tactity t the dients adjustadie o refunsatin o the expiry of the factity

Naorn-interest Dearing depeait
Inlerear bearing Ceposit

Maturay andlysis of giher cegosts

Fayatile on gerang

Jir ta & month

Cver L month But mithy 1 manths
Over 3 momns bat wilin 1 year
Over | year but wilthin % yesrs
Over 5 yuars 2ot wthun 10 veoars
Over 10 years

Other habdities

Froveion for Qratugy (nose 1.4}

INLOrest Suspessn Accaunt (note-13.2)

Acoued exp0nses and pavabies [note-12,.3)

Leaie HAOADES (Mite-12.4)

Proviecn 1or lpase, ‘oams, a0vanoes, othar asels snd off halarce shost iteois
(nota-§2.5)

Provision oo otyers (nole-13.6)

Prowigion for inteme tax {note 12.7)

Provisian oe réceivabie from providest fund accoun! (note-12 5)
Unosic/uncaared Divdend (note-12.9)

Provision for aratuity

Owfised bDenefits oblination (nate-12.1.1)
Less: P value of plan assets (note<12.1.2)

Tefined beoedits obibastion

EQlance &% sn lenuary 01

Intevest cast/mcome

Curmine sevvite cost

2charty 105s/{gain) aneg from -
Demegraphic asssmpbions
Francial assumptons
Experience adjustmerss

Bunufits pad

Ealants ag on December 11

Fair vakm of plan sssets

Saarce as en Jenuary D1

Interest cost/incoime

Contribution pag liy the empioyer
Deariefits paid
Expunses/Adpastiments

Balance 25 on December 33

Pan ascets

Casn at Bark
Invastment » Faed Osouart Racmpts

199,620,387 LS, 871,063
—SAOIAGHT0 JE2 28034
—biR 087237 _E89.1322332

46,515,600 18,752,573
86,031,339 10,507,994
176,896 897 172.928. 068
131,477.585) 236,271,442
V4,695 N0 A9, 789,27
—R123G2230 . 338,190,357
16,220,423 25459431

312.240,059 341,786,511

638 936,640 870,977,741

104,484,600 31,873,733

TAI.7T03, 968 €79,115. 72

55,000,000 40.000.000

2.313 695,92 L183,045,473
2071807 6.508.47%
3,291,062 A 083,505

80,245,120 75,000,634

{ .2
mw

25,720,634 M, 109,990
8,551,215 2,534,541
7,102,928 7614587
1,279,97% ERERA TS

(9,883,19%) (30,.240,227)

1455103 TN

(37,073.424) L1A.015.214)

65,773,203 69,154,542
6,445 325 A s ann
9,080,331 5,955 qan

(17,073474) (14,015,214}

{712,661)
64,028,717 §3.771.39)
1,265,647 1,072,050

62, 063103 04,095,100

G4,028.717 65,274,203,

C N




Amount in BDY
3034 2023
12 1.4 Princigal actuanal assamptiony
DICount fate and expecied rate of return on glan assets 12.68% 11.22%
Futurw satary growtn rate B.50% 780w
Withdraws rate
Age 1l 30 year B.50% 000N
Agw Sroen 30 0 40 years 1390 300%
Age fram 40 10 50 years 2.08% 0.50%
Age above 50 years G30% 0.00%

12,185 Sensitwity anabvss

22

12.%

Lds

Reasanably passible changes at the reportng Gate Lo sne of the refevant actuariy FSUMPDONS COMSLIN, woultl Nive
ftectes the defined Benefit abligatsirs by the smounty shown below,

2024 2023
—Increass _ __ Oecresse Increase Decroass
Discount e (1% muovemant ) (5,224,130} 10,061,938 {(9.674,232) 10,352,702
Futare saticy gromth (L% mavement) L3.207.394 (2.032,331) 11,873,300 [0,030.954)

Diterast muspenoes sooouin

Thi regrmsents interest secaivatile for Wase, termn finance, Short term FAInCe and Mvestisen| with statiz of SMA and Eelow
" gur Dangiatesh Bank guidetws.

Nalance agsan lanuary 03 341,786,511 180,471,557
Add: AMOUNt Iransfenng Lo INLerest SUSSENse aTCoUnt Suing th yedr 163.810.223 82.725,253
LESS AMOU MECOUersd From interdst SUSDense 000Ut Genng the year (20,608,502 (L6590, 860)
LASA Wiritten off dusing the vear —_—l2Resar3  (aeipaerw)
—tt 280,098 38178510
ALtrmd SaDeCcEs Ang DY
Lintuities for expenses 555099, 342 816,2333022
LinBlities Ot 1Than sxoenass 4 244 )

S— L1 E— T R TN
— 38939640 870907733
Liatilipes for expenses represedt otorwst scorued Sut 0ot POk 00 BCOWING ARG OEROIE a5 Well 8% sOTISERI Ve
expenses

Laatilities other 1han Kepe0ses repeesery incame tax and VAT deducted 3t storco hom depositers, sllers, artgiinyees and
colfection aQuinst lexse, Vand ang advances ete.

Leasd Idisities

Batlance as on lanwary &1 131.873,77) AN 7an 1M

Addition during the vear 2,7%L.29

Inurust tharged cxring the voor wnrFLE 12420 067

Dosposal durtng the vear .

Dffice rent adfeatrment made aunng tha year 606 g s81

e AU ABAS00 131873733
Moverment of leade Nabiities Ras teen (nciaded due Lo ampementation of IFRS-16 Laasay (uffe rent)




Provesion for Mase, Ioans. acvanoes. other ssssts and off balance sheet dems.

L Provision fur lease loans and sdvances

Gereral provision on Rase, Vans and advaos
Aalaner Ax on largary 01

Prosesion made for the year (note-3%)

Special provision 2% (25% paviment of deferre clieey)

Belanck ax on January 01
Provitisn made for the vear (note-33)

Specific grovisan an unclaasified lease, \oans and Advances
Salance as on January 0L

Provesion made for Lhe year [note-35)

Soecthe gravisgn o0 destiNed lawse, Sany snd advancey
Satance as on Janaary 01

Fully provaded et wiitten O duting the vear

Amauct rasksed from weeten eff cisnts
Provipan made for the vear Inate- 35)

Amount in BOT

2024 20323
126,567 653 174,082 383
25,245,956 aB4 570
as181335% 126,567,653
£,455.198 8,585.105
£3.371.9:0) 13,230,307}
4,083,288 5,455,198
15,763,051 19,415,948
22008 2352805

8,045,733 15,763,051

531.238.774 406,540,013
(129.475.400) (9.730.90%)
3:.034.750 40,355,028

e SSRTR2,F08 BININSITE

Total provisien for lease, laan and advances 753,665,288 6794210‘677—
L rovaion on other assats 30d off balance sheet terms
dalance as on January DY 98,700 107,200
Atpustimens curing the year . B.5001
98,700 98,700
Total provisian for lease, laan, ad s, other and off balance
sheet items 2 9.377
Provision surplus
2028 2023

o Beawired  Malntalned =~ Feqeired =~ Maistained
GRberal Srovision on wase, ans ant 134 277 822 151,813,559 176,418 8594 120,547,651
advances
Spevel provision 2N [15% payment of 4,082,208 4,083,288 5,455,198 5455194
deterced clients)
SEectic pravison on wnoasefiod lasse, 7,145,396 £.045,733 15,744 500 sS4 0N
0am g sdvances
Specit provigon on classifed lease, 587,083,715 589,722,709 531,064,291 AXLIIN TN
Inans and pavancEs
Other proisenn o8 200 98, 700 8 700 e ran

Total surplus

4c

742,681,024 753,763,988 678,781,383 079,119,377
e b1,082,065

——d L PS




Amount In BOT
2024 2023
12.5.1 Base for provision for lease, lvans and advances
Status Tane for Regquired
. provision _ Rata{%) Provision __Xept Pravision
Genernl Provision
Loans and jeases CMSME.STD 5.560,210,081 0.2%% 16423 027 17,259,185
Ledans and eases STD (Exdiuting 11,334 979 066 L,00% 137,845,792 134,554 174
Cmaser)
Loon/lease o 0w Sublidimmes) Sieser
Loncerny, Srokerape Houso, Merehar 2.00%
Bankg, Stock deajers
Speclsl menton account (CMSME-SMA)Y 355,778 088 0.2%% LU 7 F3a 800
Special Menbon Srrount (SMA) 125,121,451 S00% 6,256,075 T FBIRR S
151,418,220 159,855,291
Special Reserve
Extra pegvition for providing COVID 2.00%
teiated rircular advantage 10
Fatrs provision foe providing COVIZY 200%
relaled circolar advantags-SS '
Eatra provigon for provaiing COVIO 204, 1648 452 2.00% 4,083,280 4,083,286
reloted cHcular mtdvasitage
EXTERTTH 4,083,258
Specific provision
SUb-atevdaid {SMSME 55| 79,019,903 5.00% 3950,99% A,152.15%
Sl stasdas (Eaciuding CMSVE] 16, 00516 2000 3235703 3,822.04%
Doubtful (CMSME.-OF ) 105,145, 842 2000% 21037158 25,100,749
Doulitful (Eeciuting CMSME ) 9,054,150 50.00% 4547.17% 5,190,586
Fad) Loss {CMSME) 480,238.057 100 O0% 480,285.057 age, b oy
Bad/ Loss (Exduding CMSRE) 74,0312 816 100.00% 74,032,615 7032810
 SE7,081,715 589,722,708
Fravisien foe loans, advances and leases 742583274 753665288
Other proviaion
Cff-Balance Sheet 1.00%
Cther Asset 8,700 L00.00% 28,700 5829
98,700 25,700
TYotal provision w
1% Frowisioo on othars
Balonce 25 On Janaary 03 40,000,00¢ 40,000,000
Proviion mads 'ar the yo 33,000 000
. B5,000,000 40000000
2.7 Peavision foe iinome tas
Bparce as o0 January 01 1,165,64547) 20755141450
A8 Coraorate tax ‘or the vodr [note-36] 188,049 519 108,540, 150
Less: Seltiement of previcus wedr's sabiiey (note-36) - [ledi8 895]
222808393 2165645673,
LN Froessoe on receivatile from Dravident funtd secount

Promsion & kept Oue 10 uncértanly of realization o' the forfeited pravident fumd secount bstences agains rosignec
emplopees who did not tompigte reguined yeas of emplopmTeat wWith (e Company t be eigitie 1o receive ey s
COntnbubion part for the years 2015 te 2018




Amount in BOT

2023 1023
12.9 Ao analvsis of tnpsdunclnimed dividend
L Cash Gunoend Davadw

Uots 1 vear 1.113410 753,79
Over | vear bat wehin 3 vears 2177882 33014
Over 3 ¢oars Dut withn 4 vaars

Qver 4 years Dt within 5 yeary

Above 5 years .

- 5-3 ) WU P WNSSE_F 1R 1.

Il Steck ovicene Dxeabin

Vot 1 veat

Dver 1 vesr but within 3 years
Dver 3 vedrs Dut within 4 yeors
Over 4 gpars but wathin 5 vears
Abcwe S5 years

En accordance with Clause 5¢3) of the Capitsl Market Statwlizatian Pund (CMST] Rules, 2021, undaimed cash dradencs trat
redianed vatlamed for a pengd O (free years or more, from year 1994 to 2020, emounteg to BOT 17 86178567 rave

heen racaferred to the Capital Marset Szatbilzation Funa (CNSF)

Az 8 Ron-Banking Foancial Instaution (NSF]), Lnited Fnaeck WG, Berpanes and peasdnts ith Bnascisl statemunts o pot

DFIM Cirtusor foa 18, dited 23 Decerrider, 2005, whare divigens payaSia sre shiown » other llabiigios

13 Share capital

131 Adthonged capite

300,000,600 ordnary shares of BOT 30 each 200,000,000 3,000,600,006
133 Issued, Scbsoibed and fully pard up capityl
7,000 400 ondinary Shares of 80T 10 wach issund for casn 792,000,000 70,000,000

180,334,014 prilrary shares of DOT 10 eoch S50 2 Donus shares

133 Capisl acegacy rsto

L.801.146.140 1803 396 340
—AB70,136.230 _ 1,873,346,1480

In accordance win the Feunce Company At 2023, and DFIM Oroudlar Ko, 5 (coted Juty 14, 2013}, Ninenoal satitytion
1736 must maintan g rmemimure pacd-up Capinl of BOT 100 crore; provided IRat the CombIined DoKd-up Cagiia ang neserves

must meet the mimemum captal reguainsment it by Bangladesh Bank Caced on risk monghted ascats

The surpiun osgiie capial of tre comgany ot the Code of business an Decemzer 33, 2024 was BOT 17225 oore

Detolls are ac fTabiews

Core capital {Tier-1)

P30 wo copitel (note-13.2) 1,873,146,140

1,071,040, 140

SHare promium [(Hote-14) 3,756,000 1.750.000
Statutory raserve (nate-15) 1,065,900.000 1,023 050,000
Garweral reserve (nute-10) 190,000,000 190 000,000
Retaired sarnings fnote-17) 207,297,232 152,290,956 |

A) Sub Total

Elaibie supplementary canital (Tiee-11)

General Proession (Undassified luans up te spenfed imit « SMA + off Balance
Sheet esgosure)*

Aniats Qevalustion Reserves up ta S0%

Revaation Reserve for Securities uo to 50%

All other greference thares

Qwmer (it any gem aporoved B Sanglasesh Bank)

153,859,291

142,330,704

8) Sub Total

L S9853.290. 143330704

C) Tolal clighile capiial

18,015.568,405

Total assets inchuding off-balance sheet eaposures

L 3a398.020.198 _LIBLIGLAL
28,818.520,963
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Amount in BDY

2024 2023

Risk Walghtod Assets (RWA)

‘ Crede Stk *.130
On- Balance sheet 15,550,361, 535 17,580,887 120 |
Def-Ealance shast - - ’

" Maraal fise 330,843 010 418,587 553

. Coeratienal Rk L752,510,412 LS57, 148825

D) Total: RWA (4+8+) ~ALE33397,961 _19.566,693,498

E) Required copital based on risk weighted assets (10% of D) 283,549 706 1956569 350

Cavital Agaguacy ot (%) 961N 12329%

Core Captal to RWA (4} S9N 1657

Supplementary Capital 1o RWA (%) 0.91% 0.2

* Lamvited 20 £ 359 of WA an per CAMD guideling

Fertentaae of shureholdiog at the clpsing gete

No. of shares .
2024 233 2024 3023
() Sgensors
- Foreign razsn 20,00
Faragn apunsor affilisen/restey 40,324 40 21 5%
iy
Domasie “ 2. Bs 408
40671770 81.500.346 2164 A3S56
(N] Cwectors 24 877,800 11w
1% Finpndal tntttutions and Cemponiss
- foregn sponsar affilinted/related - 1747460 L™
entties
Demestic
~Soorsar MNiated/reisted entities 722,662 ’ 1ge
~Other 1505 1218
38,153,127 51238609 15.0% J130
(1} Gereral putie ~ Domestic S 21537 5437365 4962 1508
—AALANSE18 187,134,614 12009

The furegn sponsor and iTh reuted perties S0f0 the entire Whieshalding of 65,327,77 SNANS I kDarecsss 15 the lueal

ndivaual sharehoiders.

Shaveholding renae on e Gasns of srareholdng as a0 J1 Decamber, 1024

No. of shares

Lrss than San

500 to 5,000

3,001 to 10,000
10,001 1o 30,000
20,001 te 30,000
30,001 12 40,000
40001 fo 50,000
50001 to 100,000
169,001 to £,000,000
Abova 1,000 000

L e

-

Number of
Shareholders
2.055
3,553
771
s
161
113
o4
110
LE)

TYotal number Parcentage of

of shares total hotdings
326,142 017
7053510 an
5838842 312
TA35,574 18
4.057.59% 21?
4.000,650 LN
2,567,088 154
BAT2.50 453
21,9339 1372

—d23 2208 0 GESE

ZAI e ARLAASGAS 10000



2 1 i BOT
2014 3023
116 Comvgamnon of Snamroicers’ Eguaty
Setticate No of shares rorghaccon mor
Paid-ue Copis 187,114,614 19.00 1.8675,146,340
Share Prasroum 3.750.000
frofarance Share Capim
Satutory Meserve 1,065,900.000
Gerersl Reserve 190,000,800
Setained Carvogs 207,297,223
Total Shareholders’ Equity — 3G AR3 T2
Date Typos of paig-up capital No. of shares iovia '! e Total tace value
| 27-04-1989 |Sporsurs share capital 7,000 | 100 00 70000
; 23-11-198% |Sporanrs ahare capital 448,000 100.00 31,600, 000
2713-16 Inital pebiie offering 75,000 100.00 7,500 000
18-04- 2005 {Ecous [LOO%) 700,000 10009 70,006,000
20-04-2000 [Conis 150%] 700,000 100.09 79,000,000
I 25-03.2008 [Beaus {10%) 210,000 100 00 21,000,000
31-03-2009 {Bonws [14,25%) 330,000 100.00 33,000,000
25-03-2010 [Bonus {100%) 2,641 100.00 2564,00C,000
U9-062011 [Beais (75%) 3,950,000 100.00 206,000,000 |
Before spiit 9,240,000 024,000,000
L After spiit 92,400,000 10,00 924,000,000
09-14-J012 [Banus {JOW) 18,450,060 10.00 184 850000
26-63-2013 [Bomus [15%) 16,632,000 10.00 166, 20,000
10-04-3014 |Bonus (10%) 12,751,200 10,00 127,512,000 |
l 23 G4 3015 [Sonus (10%) ‘ 14,026,330 10.00 140,253,200 |
21-04-2016 [Banus {10%) ] 15.476,953 10.00 156,299,520,
27-04-2017 [Sonus {(5%) BA85521 30,00 04,559,210
2604 JU1H [Sanus 1 5%) ‘ 510,239 10.00 BY, 107,190
Paid up capital 187,114 614 _ LA71,146,340 |

14 Share premium

This regresents o premium of SO over the par volue of share received against the Esee of 750,050 sname n 1594
smountng to 8DT 3,750,000

i5 Statutory reserve

Balwyce as ot Janoery 01 1.024,0%0,00C 035,150,000
Addion duneg. the vear 41 850,000 29, 900,000
—li068,200000  ___1,024,050.000

This comprses of the cumulative balance of STATUtOrY reserve as reguires by section 8 of the Finance Compaany Act, 2023

16 General reserve

Balance as on Jdnagey 01 190,000,000 130,000,000
Trassfor 10 relaingd @arrenas dueing the year
Trarsfer fram retained aarniras during e v - -
—b000.000 190,000,000
17 Ketained estnings
Balonce as an [anuaty 01 152.290.9¢6 133,764.574

Less . Cosh dividend Tur lusl vear (532,260,740 (43,557,707
Less: Issue of bonus shares for last venr -
AgE: Transgier from goeners reserve dunng the year -
Leas. Teansfer 1o guneral resenve auiing the yest -
Balance remaing 40,022,218 38,187,765

Aca: Net pcoft piter taxaton 709,235,084 343,100,
Lke Tranlor to statitory reserve donng the yenr — (41 8%00C0) @ (39.000.500;

RT3 121,290,986




19
1%

20

N

Amount in BOT
3034 2023

Waorker's Profit Participation Fund (WPFF)

A» per Banyladesh Labor At 2006 (o5 amenoad in 2013) st companies all within the scope af Warker's Prafe Patiooatun
rung {which indudes Nea-Sankag Financial Instititions) are required 1a provide 5% ot ts proft bafom charging soth
expanses 10 their sligibie employees within the stipulated time

Mingiry of Finanoe (MeF) and Bangladesh Bank (BS) have reviewed the law and prupossd (& the Minstry of Labor to
axzliade Banks and Man-Banking Financial Institutions from (e requirements of the law fegirding e provison of Werkeos
Prfil Particigatics Fund ard acterdingly Ministry of Fanence Issuod & letter o 14 Ferudry J017 10 the Muiktry o Labor to
walye Banks and Noa-Bankag Financal |nsttutions from tse purdlew 6f the raquirement(s) of the Bangiadess Labar Act
013,

Howewet, United France PLE maintained sceguste retainel #arnings to keep requwed provison lfor Workers frafit
Partigparon Furd (from the year 2014 to 2024) subiject 10 11 Hevl ORarance 1rom this Mimstry of LAGCe since e macler

mands unrosalved

Net anset valuw per share [NAV)

Total sssets 23,015,5568.40% M.¥18,520.963
Total Sablines 4,677 25577 A7
feet assss 38193372 134123 136
Nemibier of SHhare OUISIANANG (Turrent vear's) 7,114 614 i a
tet asset value ger share c—— A c—— e
Restated NAV:

Net assels 3,338.193,072

Number of orticary snares as At 31 Detars b
Restated NAV

Contingent llabilites

Latiery of Guarantee

Letes of Quarantee (Local)
Lters of Quarantee (Forewn)
Forelgn caurter Suarbnlees

Guarantees

2,348,237 126

R | A VER TU S— YA UL

1283

1733

Tre COMpPANY IS0es guarantzes an tehalf of customers, A MNANCad quarntee represents on IMErOCItie underakiog Tl
the Company wil pay o third parties aNd & Convens nto naee or loan on e Bacis of an agreervent with the fuSRamers
The maxmum anount il the Company CoUa be reguired to gay Under ¥ guaraitee is & printipal amount

Frofit and loss account

Income

Lrgerest, gistnunt And seriles come (note-20.1) 2,700,580,844 2,156,327 210 |

Daicend income (npte-23) 130,781,059} 109,822,530 |

Otner oparaheyg INCome [noly-24) 154, 385,780
2,937 803 563 2.420.717.546

Expenses

Intecasy, fue and commission et (note-74) 1,590,604 243 135,409,003 l

Administratice expenses (eote-20.7) 679.037.521 628.8731.010

Other operating expenses (note-34) 41 572651 IR, 565,229

Depreciation on Company's fixed sssals 82010013 04,355 1R9 |

240219928 2105, 39,809

—t3,483.634 . A3 ISLIZ6.
Iaterest, discount and smiae BCome
Irterest oo (noge-21) 2,650,472 864 7.15),534,957 '
{merest on Governmart spcurdy (note:23) 49.163.02= 12,89 |
{mecest on socedy (note:23) 94187 1.974.376 |
Dsccunt Income . |
titeresk an fCbeVures - |
00580080 2,156527.220...
ADMNEIratisn separnitns
Salanes ana slpwances 586,165,376 547,581,350 |
Rent taces, INSurance, Seciniity etc 17.9724,58% 193,013
Lega mpenses 24814770 25,888 550
Pastane, stamp, teloccrmmunicatan e 16,210.307 17,427,221 |
Stationery, Dring, advertisement etc, 4,362 464 1,924,263
Mananing Director's Sa¥ary and benefes %,200,000 1,250,000
Lirwctars' fees V8B 334
Auditors Toes 062.500
Hepairs and maintenance of the Comadiy s assens R U751 B S
—l2.637,920  €28.8723310

45
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Amsunt In BOT

2024 2023
Interest Income
Lmace §22.581.07% 640,708,799
Term 1oan ana hose ban 1495137371 1,.315,224.116
Shart term finanpng ‘ 117,071,657 86,005, 353
Totsl intursst Incaomae 2,434.700,2064 1,952,920,290
Inferest on depose/baance with banks and other foaccial Insltubons 13,440,653 3,826,122
Intarest 00 dO00EEs under Man for Credit hem faziitms 103,351,544 145,765,836
830372860 2A53.518.357
Interest paid on deposits, barrows ete.
2) Imterest paid on doposits
Cpwntn frgm wthur then benks gna Nnancial institutions 1,236 559,342 LO3S, 193 200
Deposits from Danks and francial netutions « 16402778
Intendst baanng seconity dedoces 25841,07% 1Y
1,3s81430417 1,053,127,993
B)  Interest paid far borrowing
Bank Gare 59,337,436 59,273,179
BAOQUCEE: Bk refratce, oretirance & SME foundation refinancs 129,562,545 139,457,109
Dverdraft 125.300.064 &7 240, 020
Zero Couvon Band )
327,412,553 M, E24.00)
€)  Interest expensesdoase lnbilithes 3I|zm 1L 128067
9871271 12.420,067
598,694,243 1,353,332,001
Investment income
Interest on Goyernment sacurity 40,191,935 17453
Interest on boags 014,162 1.974. 170
Dividend oo shares 30,783,061 189,003,330
—AB0889077 AAL795.800
Ouner operoting mceme
ROIMDWrSenent « voce, SSDburiement prodessng, 87,265,658 115,145 348
wllectian, dotyrmertation and othar therges
Eariy rapaymont promium 8,3%1.306 9,190,294
Late navment interest 8,540,210 13,459,078
Profit on sale of share 219492 28309
Incerne from grovalend fund forfeited sroount (sote-24.1) 1,207,505 441,01
Miscalanenus earmmay — 0737286 120157
—hEA3AE20 34,356,783

Income from provident fund forfeited account

The mootre 5 recognised as per section 1 of the Financial Reparting Council {FRC) circular na. § 75 dated 07 bty 2030, Tre
Amount comprses farfeted ccount Balances o redigned employsed wha did not samplete regured years of amgioymani
with the Company to be wigilie 10 recenve employer’s contnbetion part for the yeae 2021 andd 20212

Salaries and allowances

Basic sefary, provident fund contrddution and a2 other stowances 510,236,360 514,937,519

Festval and encentve Donus 76.029@16 32";33‘00
586 37 547 561 360

Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity et

#ent, rote and 1ades (note-26.1) 202,788 219,.92%

Inswance 75641, 7 0,578,557

Plectricily, ais and waler 10,129,630 822,500

—LOZAISY  I8223,013
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2024 2023
165 Movamant of rent, rate snd tares:
Hany! wepanses thacgen 40,254 489 33,064 440
Lese Reclapstication gf rert (o poar [FRS 16 Lasser) LR I — [T 85t
Rent expesses reported 202,284 312,929

Movement of rent, rate and taxes have bean incloded cue to Implementation of IFRS-10 Lasens (efice rant),

7 Legal exponses

Leapl fess 22,136,320 20,538 685
Frofessional fees S575450 45959801
33,813,270 25,888,550
pL Postage, stamp, telecommunication etc,
Stanmg expenses 7158 946 A,347.352
Postane ane courie 053,365 795,795
Teteahone, motile anc uvternet 2004 004 8.5:3,0/4
16316397 17422223,
9 Stabianery, printing, advertisements etc.
Printing and stationerses 4,548, 596 1,901,925
Publcity and sdvestisements 293.8€8 12,148
1,924,253
30 Manaaing Director's salary and benefits
Rerruneration 7,700,000 100,000
' Other benwiing 1,500,000 250,000
2400000 L3239.900
3 Directors’ fees
l Diroctoes’ foes 330,334 568333
148,338 568,333

Ditectory fees Ivclute fees for pitending the meeting by the nomexecutine Directers, Ea0h Cirector was pad 8 Th 5000
per mexting &5 atendance fee after deduction of tax.

32 Augitors' fees

Statutery audit fous fiscluding VAT) 863,500 oA00
| o T
2 Dopraciation and repair of assots
Depreciation - (Annexure-A)
Furnitare and Nxtive 7.98).967 N 1204450
Office equigment 42,720 ¥2.4410)
Becirical sgquigmant 31,626,002 22,906,090
: Syrtemn saftware 10,6 N4 11.721 938
Moter sehides 9,143,065 B.028,297
D¢hee spoce 4447 200 4,847 2060
Rlahrof use agsets 28455 531 20,231,160
82,410,112 B4.495,289
Repairs
Matntwestere of ehectnzal egquoment, oMce sguoment, mator vebicie & othar 18,3380 $4,377.569
5sets
—l0724003  ______ DESIZIS8

, Maosement of degraciaian far Rught-af-use sssmy his tesa included due to impementabon of IPRS-16 Leasas [office rent).
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Amount in 8D7

2024 2923

Other oxpennsss
Fess and subscoipbons Z,955.127 2,203,760
Barn chargey 8 expse duts 4035314 ARUH 307
Entertalvment 3.870,368 1985137
Office expuries 6562945 7,000, 534
Dusinvess oromokion expanses 104870977 6.507.12%
Annael Genaral Mesting expeniss 2.185,39) 1,228,870
Travelling ang convevince exensas —jp2en0dz = 10.8]5.008

mw
Provision for lease, loans and advances
Gutikral Srovieon o ledse, loans ang advanies 25,245,906 284070
Sowcial previsen 2% (15% payment for deferral clients) (1,37:.9L0) 13.130.007)
SOSUEIC Prevision en undassihed lease, Dans &nd alvances [7,737,0:8) [2.653.95%)
Soscdic Providion on claaslfed Mice, 1027 and sdvances 155.528,064 076518
Pravision for taxation
Current tax
Corporate Lix for the yeae on ooerating profe 140 040,819 104,830,350
Less: Settlament of praviaus vear's taxk ladtity - (18,408 6557

148 04Y 819 90,130,519
Deferred tax
Deferred tax (oote- 9.2) (8322041 46,654,906
Qparating aroft belore tores 348,398 282 220,550,330
Procisan for taxation 139172778 3 476,509
Effoctive rate (3&.1) 3995 A6 AN
Reconclliation of effective tax rate
2024 2023
—_Percentage Taka Percentage Taka

Mofit bolare Incorme tax #s par profit 348 398,292 210,500,530
nd oss pCcount
incoeme tax os per apglicalie tax rate 37.50% 130,649,360 32.50% B4, 007,04
Met  Inpdmissmie  eapenses  (due 1O 11.58% «0,33¢6,520 12.06% FO NI AN
diferunca batween accounsng & tay
gegrechtion,  lease/loan previmon,
gruity pravison ang atrers)
Hecuces tax doe 1o tax rate beng lowwl 6.58% 122,936,097) 4.52% (19,00%.50%;
e Butbess tax rate (anidend Income
2 0% wd capitat gain eo sale of
shares 2 15%)
Settiamant af previous years tax Haddib - 6. 35% {14,400 813

Deferrec tax iocome

16,654,008
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Farndnas per share (EPS)

Nes ot after tan
Number of ertlinary ehares cutstanding

Earnings Per share (EPS)

Restotemunta of EFS:
Mot profit sfter tas
fNumber o orttnscy shares 25 on 31 December

Amount in BOT

3024 3023
209,225,514 143,103 721
287518504 414
113 0.76
209,225,514 143,100 721
l!? i l‘ !i‘ J 114614
113 0.70

Earnings per share (EFS) has Deen computad by Qivisny the Dasc samings by the number of ordinary sharer outstanding
A% of 3L Documbar 2034 sk per Intamatigoal Accognting Standard 33 Earnings Per Share.

Receipts from other operating activities

Remrsnarsenent - INVORE DOCRSSING 3¢ cullpction costs
Fary repayment geemiam

LAt pavimant chaeoges

Profa an sale of share

Inconw frem provedent tund forteaed account (note-24 1)
Macelragus eaminas

Pavments for other operating activities

Rent, Wxes, msurance, gectncty etc.
Recairs and maintenance

Trvellng 8nd conveyance espenses
Arnus Ceneral Meeting sxoanses
Entartariment

Yank charaes & wxow duty

Fees ant subscnotions

Office expemes

Directury’ lees

Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS)

Net cash Pows fram oparating activities
Numiber of shares cuestanding

NOCFPS
NOCFPS (Hostated)

Ruconciliation of Operating Activities of Cash Flows Statement
Particulars

L PriumL AITer Tas

Degrecotan

Frovision for sose, loans ane advances

Wrtteo olf Qunng the year

Amaunt reatsed from wrtten aff tlionts

Provesion for taxation

Prolit on sale of ficed assets

Increase \h ghoet torm loans

Decrease/{increase) in lease, Dans and advances
Income tac paie

Decrwase  dspusil and sthat acounts

Increase in other sabxlibes

Detremase/{increass) in cihier pssets

Increoss in rignt-9f use assers

Cash Nows from operating activities

Number of employess

NuNDer of 2iINplgyees wWhi received =i than BDT 3 000 per mosth
NutnDer of aploveas wha redeived an A0gregite amaurt more than B80T
36000 for the whole your or part of trw year

111,551,449 71,441 tas
8,391,206 9,190,29+«
8,540,219 13,159.97%

319,492 328.30%
1,287,585 a4y,
.
140,767,317 1 4
11,974,105 19.006.997
10,546,378 13,9623
10,200,032 10,975,808
1.3189.353 1,228,670
38738 1,885,127
235,804 6.698.20)
2,855,127 1.3 760
1,983,705 & 886,457
JAT, 334 508, 333
—1A20.330 03,002,925
795,807 84S 142 293 58«
187,114 £14 187, 134 Al
4.7 1%
4.7 6
209,225 514 143,103 721
Bl430.112 LRSS T
197,085,342 0T 400
(1284755801 (IR ENENTLY]
23.034.25%0 4D IS HIW
142 049,819 90,131,519
(S5E.962) 1663 684
1,443,0680.37%6 290,567 473
$1).379.854 (156,340,065
(128,142,3581 (N4 472587
12.008.245.660] (IWL,593,230)
13, 760.518 195597244
58,955,279 (ISW.E09 1821
R 3.4 ) T 3} 4 R —
—tP8807,843 142,293,554
829 BA2
823, As2.
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43 Related Party Disclosures

43.1 Particutars of Directors of tha Campany 25 e 11 December 1029

St Name of Directors oul&ﬁm Shareholding status

1. [Nayms Hasan Charmen 2.49%

2. |Mainuddin Hasan Rashic Director 4.99%,

3. [Mahenoor Sutana Rashid Director 4.99%,

4, |Kutubuddin Axhter Rashig Durector 2.91%

5. |¥nhondaker Zayed Ahsan Crrector 1.91%

Nominated Dy United Insurance Company Lid. raveg

& [Kayes Khall Khan Directar share of 19.84%

7. |ormasn katay Nizam Dirdckoe go;?cam oy Naticnal Brokers Ltg. raveg sharg off
B M. M Alem Independent Directar |Not applicable; no sharehokings

3. |Professor Or. Mahfuzul Woque Independent Diractar [Mot applcabiy: no sharsholdngs

10, |Mchammad Rafgul 1slam Hanaging Diractar  [Not applicanie; Ex-officio capacty

43.2 Name o Directors and their Intsrest in diffarent entities as on 31 December, 2024

':: Name of Directors unm.m-mm' Entities whare they have Interest
1. [Naymul Hasan Chasrman Mamber of Geverning Body

United Coilege of Nursing

Advisor

Surbena Jurong Irfrastructive fte Lid - Bangadesh |
2. [Monudain Hasan Rashid Cirettor Chairman

1. Unites! Enterprises & Co. LI0,

2. Unimart Limited

3. United Aygaz LPG Lid.

4. Unitec Sulpha-Chemicais Lud,

5. Unttag City Twin-Tower Devalopers Lid,
6. Unema Healthcare Services Lig

7. Eco Lite Recort Ltd.

8. Neptune Commercial Lig.

9, Orange Solubions Ltd.

10, Uned Tank Terminal Ltd,

11, United Lang Port Teknal wig.

12 United Purbachal Land Lid,

Managing Director

1. Unked Pawer Gengration 8 Distribution Company Lad.
2. United Mymensingh Pawer Ltg.

3. United Freperty Solutions Ltd,

4. Ipeo Developmants(Bargladesh) Led

S. Ipco Hotels Limiteo

§. United Chattogram Power Ltg

7. Unitod Lubé Oil Ltd,

8. Unted Makkah Maona Travely & ASSstance Co. Lid,
Q. Unitad Prefescional Sarvices Lid.

10. Unted Payra Power Ltd.

Director

L. Dhaka Indenting Lta

2. Neptune Lang Development 119,

3. Khuina Power Company Ltd

4. Leviathan Gicbal BD Lta.

S, Shap Enterprse Lo,

|6. Unites Ashugarn) Energy Ltd,

1. Moulvi Tea Company (PRIVATE) Ltg,

0. United Eleveter Worle Lid

9. Unted Engneering B Power Services Lto
10, United Polymers Limited

11. Unged Secunties Limited

12. Unted Shpping And Logistic Services L.
13. Unted M, College

50




SR el am—

sl
no.

Name of Directors

Status with
United Finance PLC.

Entities where they have interest

3. |Mahenodr Suttana Sashig

Directer

Chairman
Saagatia Sweatess (10,

4. [Ktubudn Akstar Rashia

Director

Director

1, nited Power Gonaratien & Distrbution Company (it
3. United Heathcace Services Lid.

3. United Ashugan) Energy L1g,

4. Unted Payra Power Lig,

5. United Lude OM Ltd.

€. Unitod Chattogram Power Lo

7, Neéptune Land Develapment Ltg

8. Uniteg Shipoing And Logistic Services

5. |Xhondaker Zayed Ansan

Director

Chalrman

Gunze Uniteg Lid

Managing Director

Dhaka Incenting Lig

Director

1. United Entreprise & Co, Lid.

2. Unitea Pharma & Heaithcare Lig,
3 Uniteg Sulpme-Chemicals Lid.

4. United Meakhcare Services Lid.
5. 00 Le Resort Lta

6. Unged Power Generstion k Distribubon Company Ltd

7. Urited Aygar LPG Lig.

6. [Kayes Khaill Khan

Director

Chalrman

UNited Securites Limiteg
Executive Director

United Enterprises & Co, Ltd

7. [Oemasn Ratay Nizam

Director

Managing Director
Natignal Brokers Lad,
Director

Chittageng Warzhayse Lid,

I M. M. Alam

Independent Directar

8 [Prefescar Or, Mahfuzul Hoque

Independent Direcor

1. Pewer Grid Compony of Bangiedesh Limites

10 |Monammad Rafiqul Lstam

Meagng Dwectar

2. Japan Soclety of Orgarczzacion and Ascounting
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43.6

Significant Contract wherp the Company 1S the party and wheroin Directors have intecest

As on 31 December 2024 no sich contract exists

Share sgued to Directors end executives without consideration or exarcisabla 48 s discount.

As on 31 December 2024 1o such share issue exises

Transaction with Directors and their retatod antitiss
Nature of
Name of the Party Related by transaction Amount
Investment in
United Tank Terminal Ltg Commaon Dirgctor preference shara 153,133,297
National Brokers Limted Common Director Term Deposit 105.335.647
Lease 2,906,608
United Insurance Company Limited Spondor Shareholder Term Dopaosit 11,000,000
Insurance premium 138.155
National Brokers Limited Provident Related concern of Navonal
Fund Brokers Limeed Term Deposit 18,570,679
United Insurance Company Limited  |Related concern of United
Employees Gratuity Fumn insurance Co. Lid. Term Oeposit #:000,000
United Engineenng And Fower Related concern af United
Services Ltd. Employee's Engineering And Power Torm Deposit 32,874,501
{Contributoty) Provident Fund Services Ltd,
Refatay concern of
Chirtagong Warchouses Limited Stafr
Providant Fund Chittagong Warehouses Term Depogt 6,000,000
Limated
United Finance Limited Employeas  [Retsted concern of Uniteq
Gratutty Fung £l PLC. Term Depaant 10,926,960
Unted Finance Umited Employees  |Related cencemn of united Term Desosit 20,094, 701

Provident Fung

Finance PLC,

Lenging policy to refated parties

Related parties are allowed Icase, 10ans and advancs as per credit podicy of the Company an armvs length bass

Investment in the Securties of Directors and thelr rélated concems

A 00 31 December 2024 no such Investrnent oxists.
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a6

a7

48

a9

Commitment

Capital expenditure

There wagk no capital sxpenditure contrmted but nat incurred or provideg for ot 31 December 2024
(2023: Nil)

Commement to ond

Under a ieasefloan commitment the Company agrees to make funds avallabia to customers In Me
future. Leasefloan commitments, which sre usually for a specified term may be unconditionally
canceliable or may persist, provided all conditions in the tease/loan facility are satisfied or walved. At
tho end of the year 2024, the Company had BOT 2,573,418,306 cOMMILTENT with customers (2023
BDT 1,006 614,329)

Cialm against Company not acknowledged as debt

Unsettied inCome tax retums/appeals are undes process for assessments/settiement with the
Nabional Board of Revenue and honorable Supreme Court (Migh Cowt Division and Appellste
Division. However, no such final judoment/order has been recelved from hoaorable Supreme Court
(High Court Dwision and Appellate Divisian) which may go against the Company

Except above, there was no such claim against the Campany which reguired to be acknow ledged as
debt ot 31 Dotember 2024

Proposal of dividend

The Board of Directors has recommended a cash gividend of BOT 1.00 per ordinary share (2023 &
BOT 0.60 per ordinary share) .. a total of BDT 18,71 millian for 187.11 million srdinary shares heid
on the record date 21 May 2025

Dividend Remitted to non-resident shareholders

An amount aof Tk 19,972627.34 equivalent to GBP 131,658.02 (2022: Tk. 16,581,584 45
equivalent to GBF 119,237.19) was remitted o nan-resident sharehoider as dividgend for the year
2023

Foreign currency transactions

There were no foreign cufrency monatary transactions during the reporting yaar that would Qive rae
L0 gams or losses in the profit and loss account

Collection of Audited Financial Statements during sanction or renewal of Lease/Loan
facility

Banglodeah Bank in s DFIM Circular no 08 dated 17 August 2021 Instructed the Ninancls
Institutians ta obtain and presarve audited finsncial statements for lcans and  advonce:
sanctioned/renewed 1o public intarest entty

In 2024, United Finance sanctioned around 1,581 clients wno are in the Cottage, Mwro, Srmall and
retall segment. These segments were exempted from mandatory subamission of Audged Financias up
10 December 2024 as per OFIM Circular lettes No. 03 dated 13 February 2023,

In addition, United Finance aso sanctoned around 312 clients i 2024 who are in the medium and
large segment, Gut of this 312 clients, audited financial statements were sbtained and presarved for
120 clients during sanction. Rest are yet to complete the statutory acdit of ther financial
statements




Disclosure on Audit Committes

& Constitubion of Audit Comemittes:

e Audit Committes of the Boarg was duly consttuted by the Baard of Duectors in pamphlianee with he
requirements of DFIM Cucular 2 0] dated 29 Fedrvary 1024 and Bangldesh Securites ang Exchangi
commnson (BSLEC) tondibon & $ o the motification ng. BSEC/CMRRCDYZ006-158/207 /A0min/S0 dated 4 June

010

The 2aarg of Durectars of the Compsay n s 226th meebng dsted 31 July 2024 slecing the followng memoer
e Audit Commitiog Tor o perod oF 3 years

s, Name Status in the Status with Educauonal
Campany Committea Qualificatinn
1 M M Alam Incependent Dhrector Chalrman MOA & Chanered Accountant|
4 |Ormaan Ratay Nzam Diractor Marnber Craduate, UK
3 JAFMM Samac Choudhury Dirgctor Member Mocnancal Enginper
4 ISharmi Nooe Nenar Comparny Secretary Secretary Chanered Secretary
n Mesting of Audit Committes:
The AXIL Commttee of the Dosg conoucted 4 (Four) meetngs ¥ the year 2024, O« vittan, Covnpe

Managing Director, Deputy Maraging Dwoectar, Che! Fnancial OMcer (CFQ), Heao of intermal Aueht

Complance, Chief sk Cfficer (CROD) and M=ac of Specia Assets Management attendes the meetng to mes

gquenies of the Audlt Cormnmittes and take directives for imorovement

t. Rasponsibiities executed by the Audit Cammittee

DUNng 2024, the AudL Comimtles gischarped MIweng resporabiliies

1) Met with the external Augitors for dscussion on the Company’s draft Audted Financia Statements for the
year 2023

i) Reviewed the Corpany's c-afl Ninanca! statemeants for the year ended gn December 31 2023 e
recommended thet (he same be plated before the Dosrd for epprosal

i) Rewomemanded et the report of the Committee be adopted by the Doard for pubilistieg n Lhe Antius
Report 2023

W) Advisad the Board on the agpaintment of atemal audtcoes for the year 2024 an their sudit fee
v) Advizeg the Boerd on the =ppointment of professional for certification on comphance af Corposace
Governanco for the yoar 2023 ang their professional foe

vi] Reviewen the management GSCURSON and analysis and recommended that the same be placed 1o the
Board for approval

vil) Reviswed the quarterty financial statements snd recormmmended that the same be placed 1o the Beard fin
appraoval

wil) Reviewed the guarterly reports on Hsk Management forum
Ix) Ravewad the quarterly report an Internal Control ang Compliance

xX] Reviewed the quirtedy report on derelopenent of panding gl Cases

—r

¥1) Roviewaa the guarterly ceport an withil defaultar refated information

11) RevievwaD Lhe Managermert Repart oF tne extemal uaitors” for the year 2023 akong wih the management
resotnses on the Comparny’s nterna cantrol

i) Reviewsd and appraved the Ooerational Guiceines on Irteral Contral and Compliance

xiv) Reviewed and approved the Compliance Calendar 2025

Xy} Aovisweo the Legse/Loan Write CFF cases

Su




51 Mighlights on the overall activities

s

e Particulars 2024 2023 Growth (%)

Pawd-up capeal {note-13 2) MBOT 1,.871.1% 1.871.15%
Total Elgitle capital (note-13.7) MEBDT 3,408.08 3,381.57 3.38%:

¥}

.

Copital surglus (note-13.3) MBOT 1,732.50 1,826, 21.492

-

Total assets MBOT| 2801557 28,

-

L
fotal Term geposits (nete-11.1) MBDT| 11,367.86 13,6978 ~172.01%
Total lease, nans and advances (note-7.1) MBDT| 19,463.36 20,376 74 4,448

o

~4

Total contingent labilties and commements {note-19) MBEDY -

o

Loan to depost ratio (ncte-7,1/ncte-11.1) 1. £.49 15100

Percentage of classified ease, loans and advances
aoninst total leases, loans end advences (note-7 9) (%) 4. 58 4 B4 2.91%]
10 |Profe aftor tox and provsion MBDY 209.23 14210 16,21%

11 |Amount of Kaas classified during the yoar MBDT 969.22 385.9% 1.704

L2 | PrOviSions sepl aganst dassiied loans (note-12.5) IMBDY 569.72 531.23 1L.01%
13 |[Provision surplis [note-12.5) IMBDT 11.08 0.34 3178, 78%|
{4 |Cost of funa (%) 4.7 £41 10,584 ‘
} Interest earming assets IMBDT| 24,578.45 25,199.48 2.46%:
3.437.11 3,619.04
17 [Retum on Equity (%} €36 445 42 95%,

Ron-nterest earning assets

8 |Net Retuen 1o total earmng assets (%) .85 0.57 359.90%:|

18 |Return on total nsets & (W) 0.74 ¢.51 | A4 D&%
20 |Incame from Investment in shares and bands {note-23) MBDTY 1D A% 112 80 60, 3%
0.7

L]
-
~

o~

Esrrungs per share v BoT L.

-
i

o
’

-
J

~
[ =
~

Nel nicorme per share s BoT 1)

o
A o
-
<

"~
-

.~

Prce Saming ratio (v Nnmes 11.98

MBDT= Sangadesty Taka in Mian, BOT« Bangledesiy Takd

I, Return on equity 1S caxulated based an average equity

. Return pa assets s caculated tased on avérage assets:

L. Restated EPS

v, Smce United Finance PLE, does net have any minoarity interest, EFS and net Income per shore remain same
v Based on Decembar 31 market prce of the respective year

C—W | -

fiqul Islam Professor Dr. Mahfuzul Hoque Kayes Khall Khan
lrectos Independent Déirector Directay

Mohammad
Managing

Chairm

Dhaka, 8anglacesh
Dated: I8 April 2025
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